NEW ISSUE — BOOK-ENTRY ONLY INSURED RATING: S&P: “AAA”
UNDERLYING RATING: S&P: “A”
(See “RATINGS” herein.)

In the opinion of Pillsbury Winthrop LLP, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings, and judicial
decisions and assuming, among other matters, compliance with certain covenants and requirements described herein, interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross
income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and is exempt from State of California personal income
taxes. In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of federal individual or corporate alternative
minimum taxes, although Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted current earnings in calculating federal corporate alternative minimum
taxable income. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding other tax consequences relating to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest
on, the Bonds. See “TAX MATTERS” herein.

$18,640,000

CITY OF OXNARD FINANCING AUTHORITY
LEASE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, 2003 SERIES A

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: June 1, as shown below

THIS COVER PAGE CONTAINS CERTAIN INFORMATION FOR QUICK REFERENCE ONLY. IT IS NOT A SUMMARY OF THIS ISSUE. INVESTORS
MUST READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO OBTAIN INFORMATION ESSENTIAL TO THE MAKING OF AN INFORMED INVESTMENT
DECISION.

The City of Oxnard Financing Authority Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2003 Series A (the “Bonds”), are being issued in the aggregate principal amount of
$18,640,000 by the City of Oxnard Financing Authority (the “Authority”) pursuant to Article 11 (commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division
2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code and the provisions of a Trust Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2003 (the “Trust Agreement”), by and among the Authority,
the City of Oxnard (the “City”’) and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). Capitalized terms used on this cover page and not otherwise
defined shall have the meanings ascribed to them elsewhere in this Official Statement. See in particular “APPENDIX A - SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS
OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS — SELECTED DEFINITIONS” herein.

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to (i) refund the 1993 Bonds, (ii) prepay the Zions Bank Leases, (iii) provide for a reserve fund with respect
to the Bonds, and (iv) pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds. See “PLAN OF REFUNDING” and “APPENDIX A — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS” herein.

The Bonds will be delivered in fully registered form without coupons and, when delivered, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”). DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. Individual purchases of Bonds may be made in book-
entry form only, in the principal amount of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof for each maturity. Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their interest in
the Bonds purchased. See “THE BONDS — Book-Entry Only System” herein.

Payments of interest on the Bonds will be made by the Trustee to DTC, which will in turn remit such principal and interest to its participants for subsequent
dispersal to beneficial owners of the Bonds as described herein. Interest on the Bonds is payable semiannually each June 1 and December 1, commencing June 1, 2003,
until the maturity or the earlier redemption thereof. Principal and any redemption premiums with respect to each Bond will be paid upon surrender of such Bond at
the principal corporate office of the Trustee upon maturity or the earlier redemption thereof.

The Bonds are subject to optional and extraordinary mandatory redemption prior to their stated maturities as described herein.

The Bonds are payable from Base Rental payments to be made by the City to the Authority pursuant to a Master Lease and Option to Purchase, dated as of
May 1, 2003 (the “Lease”), by and between the City and the Authority, and from amounts held in certain funds and accounts established under the Trust Agreement.
Pursuant to the Lease, the City will lease from the Authority the Oxnard Library and an administrative annex building (each, a “Component” and, collectively, the
“Property”). The City will covenant in the Lease that, as long as the Property is available for the City’s use, it will make all Base Rental payments and other payments
provided for in the Lease, it will include all such payments in its annual budget, and it will make the necessary annual appropriations for such rental payments. The City’s
obligation to make Base Rental payments is subject to abatement in the event of damage to, destruction or condemnation of, or a title defect with respect to, the Property.

Payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due will be insured by a financial guaranty insurance policy to be issued by Ambac Assurance
Corporation simultaneously with the delivery of the Bonds.

Ambac

THE BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY PAYABLE SOLELY FROM AND SECURED SOLELY BY THE BASE RENTAL
PAYMENTS AND AMOUNTS HELD IN CERTAIN FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS ESTABLISHED UNDER THE TRUST AGREEMENT. THE BONDS DO NOT
CONSTITUTE AN OBLIGATION OF THE AUTHORITY FOR WHICH THE AUTHORITY IS OBLIGATED TO LEVY OR PLEDGE ANY FORM OF
TAXATION OR FOR WHICH THE AUTHORITY HAS LEVIED OR PLEDGED ANY FORM OF TAXATION. THE OBLIGATION OF THE CITY TO MAKE
BASE RENTAL PAYMENTS UNDER THE LEASE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OBLIGATION OF THE CITY FOR WHICH THE CITY IS OBLIGATED TO
LEVY OR PLEDGE ANY FORM OF TAXATION OR FOR WHICH THE CITY HAS LEVIED OR PLEDGED ANY FORM OF TAXATION. NEITHER THE
FULL FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE CITY, THE COUNTY OF VENTURA (THE “COUNTY”), THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
(THE “STATE”), OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE
BONDS. NEITHER THE BONDS NOR THE OBLIGATION OF THE CITY TO MAKE BASE RENTAL PAYMENTS CONSTITUTES AN INDEBTEDNESS OF
THE AUTHORITY, THE CITY, THE COUNTY, THE STATE, OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE, WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY
CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY DEBT LIMITATION OR RESTRICTION.

MATURITY SCHEDULE
Maturity Maturity
Date Principal Interest Base CUSIP Date Principal Interest Base CUSIP
(June 1) Amount Rate Yield Price No."" 691875 (June 1) Amount Rate Yield Price No."’ 691875
2004  $1,155,000 2.00% 1.10% 100.914% AA6 2011 $1,475,000 5.00% 3.38% 111.302% AHI
2005 1,180,000 3.00 1.25 103.488 AB4 2012 1,545,000 3.40 3.55 98.849 AJ7
2006 1,215,000 3.00 1.60 104.117 AC2 2013 1,600,000 3.50 3.65 98.749 AK4
2007 1,250,000 4.00 2.05 107.496 ADO 2014 1,655,000 3.70 3.83 98.838 AL2
2008 1,305,000 4.00 2.40 107.531 AES8 2015 1,715,000 3.80 4.00 98.104 AMO
2009 1,355,000 3.50 2.75 104.137 AF5 2016 1,785,000 4.00 4.13 98.699 ANS
2010 1,405,000 5.00 3.11 111.843 AG3

(D Copyright 2003, American Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by Standard & Poor’s CUSIP Service Bureau, a division of The
McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. This data is not intended to create a database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP services.

The Bonds are offered when, as and if delivered to and received by the Underwriter, subject to the approval of legality by Pillsbury Winthrop LLP, Los Angeles,
California, Bond Counsel. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Authority and the City by the City Attorney and by Pillsbury Winthrop LLP, Los Angeles,
California, as Disclosure Counsel. It is anticipated that the Bonds in book-entry form will be available for delivery to DTC in New York, New York, on or about
May 22, 2003.

E.J. DE LA ROSA & CO., INC.

Dated: April 29, 2003.



No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the City, the Authority or
the Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this
Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied
upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing. This Official Statement does not constitute an
offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor will there be any sale of the Bonds by any person in
any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

This Official Statement is not to be construed to be a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds.
Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve estimates, forecasts or matters of opinion,
whether or not expressly described as such herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be construed
as representations of fact.

The information set forth herein has been obtained from the City and other sources which are
believed to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, and it is not to be
construed as a representation by the City or the Authority. The information and expressions of opinion
herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any
sale made hereunder will, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change
in the affairs of the City or the Authority since the date hereof.

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement:
The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part
of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and
circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of
such information.

This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the Bonds referred to herein
and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose.

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,
AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION CONTAINED IN SUCH ACT. THE
BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF
ANY STATE.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE
BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN
MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, [F COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

$18,640,000
CITY OF OXNARD FINANCING AUTHORITY
LEASE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, 2003 SERIES A

INTRODUCTION
General

This Official Statement, which includes the cover page, Table of Contents and Appendices (the
“Official Statement”), provides certain information concerning the sale and delivery of the City of Oxnard
Financing Authority Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2003 Series A (the “Bonds”), in an aggregate
principal amount of $18,640,000. Descriptions and summaries of various documents hereinafter set forth
do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive, and reference is made to each such document for
complete details of all terms and conditions therein. All statements in this Official Statement are
qualified in their entirety by reference to the applicable documents.

This Introduction is subject in all respects to the more complete information contained elsewhere
in this Official Statement, and the offering of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of
the entire Official Statement. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in “APPENDIX A - SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS — SELECTED DEFINITIONS” herein.

Authorization

The Bonds are being issued by the City of Oxnard Financing Authority (the “Authority™), a joint
exercise of powers entity duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
California, pursuant to Article 11 (commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2
of Title 5 of the California Government Code (the “Act”) and the provisions of a Trust Agreement, dated
as of May 1, 2003 (the “Trust Agreement”), by and among the Authority, the City of Oxnard (the “City”)
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”).

Purpose of Issuance

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to (i) refund the 1993 Bonds (as hereinafter
defined), (ii) prepay the Zions Bank Leases (as hereinafter defined), (iii) provide for a reserve fund with
respect to the Bonds, and (iv) pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds. See “PLAN OF REFUNDING”
herein.

Registration, Maturity and Payment of Bonds

The Bonds will be initially registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository
Trust Company, which will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be dated the date
of their initial delivery and will mature on the dates and in the principal amounts set forth on the cover
page hereof.

Interest on the Bonds is payable semiannually on June 1 and December 1, commencing
June 1, 2003, and will be paid by check, mailed by first class mail to the registered owners thereof (each,
an “Owner”) as of the applicable Record Date; provided, however, that any Owner of $1,000,000 or more



in aggregate principal amount of Bonds may request in writing payment of such interest by wire transfer
in immediately available funds to a designated account. Principal of and any redemption premium with
respect to each Bond will be payable upon surrender of such Bond at the principal corporate trust office of
the Trustee in Los Angeles, California, upon the maturity or earlier redemption thereof. See “THE
BONDS — Payment of Principal and Interest” herein.

Redemption of Bonds

Optional Redemption. The Bonds maturing on or before June 1, 2013 are not subject to optional
redemption prior to maturity. The Bonds maturing on or after June 1, 2014 are subject to optional
redemption on or after June 1, 2013, in whole or in part on any Business Day, without premium, from (i)
amounts deposited with the Trustee by the City of Oxnard (the “City”) upon the exercise by the City of its
option to purchase the Authority’s right, title and interest in the Property or a Component pursuant to the
Lease (each as defined below), and (ii) any other available source of funds. See “THE BONDS -
Optional Redemption of Bonds™ herein.

Mandatory Redemption. The Bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption under
certain circumstances as described herein. See “THE BONDS — Mandatory Redemption of Bonds”
herein.

Security for the Bonds

The Bonds are payable from base rental (“Base Rental””) payments to be made by the City to the
Authority pursuant to a Master Lease and Option to Purchase, dated as of May 1, 2003 (the “Lease”), by
and between the City and the Authority, and from amounts held in certain funds and accounts established
under the Trust Agreement.

Pursuant to the Lease, the City will lease from the Authority the Oxnard Library and an
administrative annex building (each a “Component” and collectively the “Property”), as described herein
under the caption “THE PROPERTY.” Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Authority will assign to the
Trustee, for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds, certain of its rights, title and interest in and to the
Lease and the Property Lease, dated as of May 1, 2003 (the “Property Lease”), by and between the City
and the Authority, including, without limitation, the right to receive Base Rental payments and the right to
enforce payment of Base Rental payments when due, but excluding certain rights to payment of expenses,
to indemnification and to receive notices under the Lease.

Pursuant to the Lease, the City will be required, subject to its abatement rights, to pay Base
Rental and, as Additional Rental, any taxes, assessments and insurance premiums with respect to the
Property and the fees, costs and expenses incurred by the Authority, the Trustee and Ambac Assurance
Corporation (the “Bond Insurer” or “Ambac Assurance”) in connection with the Lease, the Trust
Agreement or the Property. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS — Base Rental.” Base Rental payments
are payable five (5) business days prior to each June 1 and December 1, commencing five (5) business
days prior to June 1, 2003. Upon the issuance of the Bonds, the City will certify as to the fair rental value
of each of the Components of the Property as of the date of such issuance.

Base Rental payments are subject to abatement during any period in which, by reason of a
material title defect or material damage, destruction or condemnation, there is substantial interference
with the City’s right to use and occupancy of the Property or any portion thereof.

Under the Lease, the City is required to maintain rental interruption insurance covering two times
the then-applicable Reserve Requirement. In addition, the Property will be insured, through insurers



meeting certain requirements set forth in the Lease and otherwise approved by the Bond Insurer, against
loss or damage. Any net insurance proceeds and condemnation awards will be applied to repair or replace
the Property or to redeem all or a portion of the Bonds. See “THE BONDS - Extraordinary Mandatory
Redemption” and “APPENDIX A — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL
DOCUMENTS?” herein.

The City has covenanted in the Lease to take such action as may be necessary to include and
maintain all Base Rental payments and other payments due under the Lease in its annual budget, and to
make the necessary annual appropriations for all such payments, as long as a portion of the Property with
fair rental value sufficient to support such Base Rental payments is available for the City’s use. See
“SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Base Rental,” “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY
LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND APPROPRIATIONS — Article XIIIB of California Constitution:
Limits on Appropriations” and “APPENDIX A — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS — LEASE” herein.

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the City is required to maintain amounts on deposit in the
Reserve Fund, which is held by the Trustee and pledged to the payment of principal of and interest on the
Bonds, in an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS — Reserve
Fund” and “APPENDIX A — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL
DOCUMENTS — TRUST AGREEMENT” herein.

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, the Authority has arranged for the Bond Insurer to
deliver to the Trustee a financial guaranty insurance policy (the “Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy”).
The Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy will guarantee the scheduled payments when due of the
principal of and interest on the Bonds. See “FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY” herein.

Continuing Disclosure

The Authority will covenant in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated the date of issuance
of the Bonds, by and between the Authority and the Trustee, as dissemination agent (the “Continuing
Disclosure Agreement”), to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the City
and the Authority and notices of certain events, if material. Such information and notices will be filed by
the Authority with certain Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Repositories. See
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” and “APPENDIX E — FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
AGREEMENT” herein.

Limited Obligations

The Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from and secured solely
by the Base Rental payments and amounts held in certain funds and accounts established under the
Trust Agreement. The Bonds do not constitute an obligation of the Authority for which the
Authority is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation or for which the Authority has levied
or pledged any form of taxation. The obligation of the City to make Base Rental payments under
the Lease does not constitute an obligation of the City for which the City is obligated to levy or
pledge any form of taxation or for which the City has levied or pledged any form of taxation.
Neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing power of City, the County of Ventura (the “County”),
the State of California (the “State”), or any political subdivision of the State is pledged to the
payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds. Neither the Bonds nor the obligation of the
City to make Base Rental payments constitutes an indebtedness of the Authority, the City, the
County, the State, or any political subdivision of the State, within the meaning of any constitutional
or statutory debt limitation or restriction.



THE BONDS
Authorization and Payment of Bonds

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Act and the provisions of the Trust Agreement. The
Bonds will be dated the date of their initial delivery and will mature on the dates and in the principal
amounts set forth on the cover page hereof. Interest on the Bonds will be paid semiannually on each
June 1 and December 1, commencing June 1, 2003 (each, an “Interest Payment Date”), to Owners
recorded in the registration books kept by the Trustee as of the fifteenth day of the month preceding the
applicable Interest Payment Date (the “Record Date”). Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-
day year comprised of twelve 30-day months.

The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds in the denomination of $5,000 each or any
integral multiple thereof. Principal of and redemption premium, if any, on each Bond will be payable
upon surrender of such Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee in Los Angeles,
California, upon the maturity or earlier redemption thereof. Interest will be payable by check, mailed to
the Owners of the Bonds as of the applicable Record Date at their addresses as they appear on the Bond
register maintained by the Trustee; provided, however, that interest payable to an owner of $1,000,000 or
more aggregate principal amount of Bonds will be paid by wire transfer to such account within the United
States as such owner shall have specified in writing prior to the applicable Record Date to the Trustee for
such purpose. Certain of the provisions described above will not apply as long as the Bonds are in a
book-entry only system. See “THE BONDS — Book-Entry Only System” below.

Optional Redemption of Bonds

The Bonds maturing on or before June 1, 2013 are not subject to optional redemption prior to
their stated maturities. The Bonds maturing on or after June 1, 2014 are subject to optional redemption on
or after June 1, 2013 at the option of the Authority, as a whole or in part on any Business Day, without
premium, from amounts deposited with the Trustee by the City in furtherance of the exercise by the City
of its option to purchase the Authority’s right, title and interest in the Property or a Component, in
accordance with the Lease and from any other available source of funds.

Mandatory Redemption of Bonds

The Bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption prior to maturity in whole or in
part on any date, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued but unpaid
interest to the redemption date, without premium, (i) from net insurance proceeds or condemnation
awards not used to repair or replace the Property or portions thereof which have been materially damaged,
destroyed or taken in eminent domain proceedings, or (ii) from proceeds of title insurance if the title
defect giving rise to the payment of such proceeds results in an abatement of Base Rental payments under
the Lease. See “APPENDIX A — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL
DOCUMENTS — LEASE” herein.

Selection of Bonds for Redemption

Whenever provision is made in the Trust Agreement for the redemption of Bonds and less than all
of the outstanding Bonds are to be called for redemption, the Trustee will select Bonds for redemption pro
rata among maturities, as specified by the Authority, such that substantially equal debt service results for
the remaining years of the term of the Lease and such that Base Rental to become due in each remaining
year of the term of the Lease will be as nearly equal as possible to Base Rental to come due in every other



such year. As to any Bond, such redemption will be in the amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof.

Notice of Redemption; Effect of Notice

Whenever redemption is authorized or required and, if required under the Trust Agreement,
sufficient funds are deposited with the Trustee for such purposes as provided in the Trust Agreement, the
Trustee will mail a notice of such redemption to affected Owners not less than 30 days nor more than 60
days prior to the date of such redemption. Neither failure to receive notice nor any defect in notice will
affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for the redemption of Bonds. From and after any such
redemption date, interest on the Bonds to be redeemed will cease to accrue.

Book-Entry Only System

The Bonds will be initially delivered in the form of one fully registered Bond for each of the
maturities of the Bonds, registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, as registered owner of
all the Bonds. The following description of DTC and its book-entry system has been provided by DTC
and has not been verified for accuracy or completeness by the City or the Authority, and neither the City
nor the Authority shall have any liability with respect thereto. Neither the City nor the Authority shall
have any responsibility or liability for any aspects of the records maintained by DTC relating to or
payments made on account of beneficial ownership, or for maintaining, supervising, or reviewing any
records maintained by DTC relating to beneficial ownership, of interests in the Bonds.

DTC is a limited purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking
organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve
System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a
“clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. DTC holds securities that its participants (the “Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also
facilitates the settlement among Participants of securities transactions, such as transfers and pledges, in
deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry changes in Participants’ accounts,
thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants (“Direct
Participants”) include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and
certain other organizations. DTC is owned by a number of its Direct Participants and by the New York
Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange, Inc., and the National Association of Securities
Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as securities brokers and dealers,
banks, and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct
Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants™). The rules applicable to DTC and its
Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants,
which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual
purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect
Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their
purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the
transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the
Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial
Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the
Bonds except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.



To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Participants with DTC are registered in
the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co.
or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of
the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct
Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.
The Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their
customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to
them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions and defaults.
Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit
has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners or in the alternative, Beneficial Owners
may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be
provided directly to them.

REDEMPTION NOTICES SHALL BE SENT BY THE TRUSTEE TO DTC. IF LESS THAN
ALL OF THE BONDS ARE BEING REDEEMED, DTC’S PRACTICE IS TO DETERMINE BY LOT
THE AMOUNT OF THE INTEREST OF EACH DIRECT PARTICIPANT IN SUCH ISSUE TO BE
REDEEMED.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to
the Bonds. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City or the Authority as soon
as possible after the Record Date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights
to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the Record Date (identified in a
listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and interest payments with respect the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co. or such other
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct
Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the City or
the Trustee, on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in
“street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC (or its nominee), the
Trustee, or the City or Authority, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect
from time to time. Payment of principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be
requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the City or the Trustee,
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC, and
disbursement of such payments to Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of Direct and Indirect
Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the City, the Authority or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a
successor securities depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered
in accordance with the terms of the Trust Agreement.



THE INFORMATION IN THIS SECTION CONCERNING DTC AND DTC’S BOOK-ENTRY
SYSTEM HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM SOURCES THAT THE CITY AND THE AUTHORITY
BELIEVE TO BE RELIABLE, BUT NEITHER THE CITY NOR THE AUTHORITY TAKES ANY
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY THEREOF. NEITHER THE CITY NOR THE
AUTHORITY GIVES ANY ASSURANCES THAT DTC WILL DISTRIBUTE PAYMENTS TO DTC
PARTICIPANTS OR THAT PARTICIPANTS OR OTHERS WILL DISTRIBUTE PAYMENTS WITH
RESPECT TO THE BONDS RECEIVED BY DTC OR ITS NOMINEES AS THE REGISTERED
OWNER, ANY REDEMPTION NOTICES, OR OTHER NOTICES TO THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS,
OR THAT THEY WILL DO SO ON A TIMELY BASIS, OR THAT DTC WILL SERVE AND ACT IN
THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT.

PLAN OF REFUNDING
Refunding of 1993 Bonds

A portion of the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to refund the outstanding City
of Oxnard Financing Authority Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993 (the “1993 Bonds”). The
1993 Bonds were previously issued by the Authority to provide moneys to refund and otherwise retire or
terminate the Prior Obligations (as defined below). The proceeds of the Prior Obligations were used to
acquire, construct and/or install certain facilities of the City.

The Prior Obligations were comprised of the following: (i) the City of Oxnard Public Facilities
Corporation Certificates of Participation (Civic Center Library Project), Series 1988 (the “1988
Certificates”), originally delivered in the aggregate principal amount of $11,000,000; (ii) the City of
Oxnard Public Facilities Corporation Refunding Certificates of Participation (River Ridge Golf Course
Project) delivered in 1986 (the “1986 Certificates”), originally delivered in the aggregate principal
amount of $14,920,000; (iii) the outstanding principal amount of the City of Oxnard Public Facilities
Corporation Certificates of Participation (River Ridge Sports Facility, Wastewater Treatment Plant and
Corporate Yard Project) issued in 1985 (the “1985 Certificates”), originally issued in the aggregate
principal amount of $6,590,000; (iv) the City of Oxnard Auditorium Authority Revenue Bonds issued in
1966 (the “1966 Bonds™), originally issued in the aggregate principal amount of $1,900,000; (v) the City
of Oxnard Parking Authority Lease Revenue Bonds issued in 1972 (the “1972 Bonds”), originally
delivered in the aggregate principal amount of $910,000; and (vi) the Lease with Option to Purchase
Agreement between GE Capital Public Finance, Inc. and the City, dated as of September 17, 1991, as
amended by Amendments dated as of June 23, 1992 (the “GE Capital Lease”). The 1988 Certificates, the
1986 Certificates, the 1985 Certificates, the 1966 Bonds, the 1972 Bonds and the GE Capital Lease are
collectively referred to herein as the “Prior Obligations.”

In connection with the delivery of the Bonds, the Authority will enter into the Escrow Agreement,
dated as of May 1, 2003 (the “Escrow Agreement”), with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”), with respect to the refunding of the 1993 Bonds. Under the Escrow
Agreement, a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds, together with certain other moneys transferred from
the reserve fund and the debt service fund previously established for the 1993 Bonds (the “1993 Reserve
Fund” and the “1993 Debt Service Fund,” respectively, and, collectively, the “1993 Bond Funds”), will be
deposited into an escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund”), to be held in trust by the Escrow Agent for the
benefit of the owners of the 1993 Bonds. Moneys deposited in the Escrow Fund will be held uninvested
as cash and will be in an amount sufficient (i) to refund and redeem the 1993 Bonds and discharge the
Prior Trust Agreement (as defined in the Escrow Agreement) in accordance with its terms, and (ii) to pay
on June 1, 2003, the accrued interest on the 1993 Bonds maturing on and after June 1, 2003, the principal



amount of the 1993 Bonds maturing on June 1, 2003, and the redemption price of 102% of the principal
amount payable with respect to the 1993 Bonds maturing after June 1, 2003.

Upon delivery of the Bonds, the City will take all actions required by the defeasance provisions
of the Prior Trust Agreement such that the Prior Obligations will no longer be deemed to be outstanding
and unpaid thereunder and, in accordance with the provisions of any lease agreements (the “Prior Leases”™)
pursuant to which the Property is currently leased, the Prior Leases will be terminated.

Prepayment of Zions Bank Leases

A portion of the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to prepay certain of the lease
obligations by and between the City and Zions First National Bank (the “Zions Bank Leases”). The Zions
Bank Leases are comprised of the 300 West Third Street Lease and the Old High School Lease, as
defined below:

300 West Third Street Lease. On March 12, 2002, the City purchased the land located at 300
West Third Street and 320, 326, 330, and 344 South “C” Street (the “300 West Third Street Property”),
on which the administrative offices of the City are located, in the amount of $862,000. The City
subsequently entered into a lease/lease-back arrangement with Zions First National Bank (“Zions Bank™)
pursuant to that certain Non-BQ Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2002 (the “300 West
Third Street Lease™), to finance a portion of said purchase. Pursuant to the 300 West Third Street Lease,
the City is obligated to pay an aggregate amount of $621,320, payable in semi-annual payments
amortized over a 10-year period and subject to a variable interest rate of 70% of Zions Bank’s prime
interest rate. As of the expected Bond closing date, the outstanding principal and accrued interest due
from the City under the 300 West Third Street Lease is $598,531.41.

Old High School Lease. On December 12, 2001, the State of California approved the sale of the
old Oxnard High School (the “Old High School Property”) to the City for a purchase price of $2,150,000.
The Old High School Property is located at 937 West Fifth Street on the corner of Fifth Street and “K”
Street in the City. The City subsequently entered into a lease/lease-back arrangement with Zions Bank
pursuant to that certain Non-BQ Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 9, 2002 (the “Old High
School Lease™), to finance a portion of said purchase. Pursuant to the Old High School Lease, the City is
obligated to pay an aggregate amount of $2,084,264, payable in semi-annual payments over a 10-year
period and subject to a variable interest rate of 70% of Zions Bank’s prime interest rate. As of the
expected Bond closing date, the outstanding principal and accrued interest due from the City under the
Old High School Lease is $2,025,758.15.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



The following table details the estimated sources and uses of Bond proceeds and moneys on

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

deposit in the 1993 Bond Funds.

Estimated Sources:

Principal Amount of Bonds
Transfer from 1993 Reserve Fund

$18,640,000.00
2,707,635.57

Transfer from 1993 Debt Service Fund 2,150,714.38
Plus: Original Issue Premium 570,101.90
Less: Underwriter’s Discount (161,236.00)

Total Sources

$23,907,215.85

Estimated Uses:
Transfer to Escrow Agent for deposit into Escrow Fund M $19,062,314.38
Transfer to Bond Insurer ® 165,115.95
Deposit into the Costs of Issuance Fund 181,723.21
Deposit into the Reserve Fund 1,856,400.00
Deposit into Debt Service Fund 17,372.75

Deposit into Zions Bank Payment Fund

(6)
Total Uses

2,624.289.56
$23,907,215.85

a

Comprised of (a) a portion of the Bond proceeds transferred by the Trustee in an amount equal to
$14,221,337.18, (b) the moneys transferred by the 1993 Trustee from the 1993 Reserve Fund in an
amount equal to $2,707,635.57, and (c) a portion of the moneys transferred by the 1993 Trustee from
the 1993 Debt Service Fund in an amount equal to $2,133,341.63.

Represents the premium for the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy.

Moneys in the Costs of Issuance Fund are expected to be used to pay the fees and expenses of Bond
Counsel, Disclosure Counsel, the Trustee, and the applicable rating agency, as well as printing and
other miscellaneous costs.

Represents the Reserve Requirement.

Comprised of the moneys transferred by the 1993 Trustee from the 1993 Debt Service Fund that were
not transferred to the Escrow Agent for deposit into the Escrow Fund.

Amounts deposited into the Zions Bank Payment Fund will be immediately used by the Trustee to
prepay the Zions Bank Leases.

@
3)

(C)
®)

(©)
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DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

Principal of and interest on the Bonds are scheduled to be paid as follows:

Date Principal Interest Total Bond Year Total
June 1, 2003 $ 17,372.75 $ 17,372.75 $ 17,372.75
December 1, 2003 347,455.00 347,455.00
June 1,2004  $1,155,000.00 347,455.00 1,502,455.00 1,849,910.00
December 1, 2004 335,905.00 335,905.00
June 1, 2005 1,180,000.00 335,905.00 1,515,905.00 1,851,810.00
December 1, 2005 318,205.00 318,205.00
June 1, 2006 1,215,000.00 318,205.00 1,533,205.00 1,851,410.00
December 1, 2006 299,980.00 299.,980.00
June 1, 2007 1,250,000.00 299.,980.00 1,549,980.00 1,849,960.00
December 1, 2007 274,980.00 274,980.00
June 1, 2008 1,305,000.00 274,980.00 1,579,980.00 1,854,960.00
December 1, 2008 248,880.00 248,880.00
June 1, 2009 1,355,000.00 248,880.00 1,603,880.00 1,852,760.00
December 1, 2009 225,167.50 225,167.50
June 1, 2010 1,405,000.00 225,167.50 1,630,167.50 1,855,335.00
December 1, 2010 190,042.50 190,042.50
June 1, 2011 1,475,000.00 190,042.50 1,665,042.50 1,855,085.00
December 1, 2011 153,167.50 153,167.50
June 1, 2012 1,545,000.00 153,167.50 1,698,167.50 1,851,335.00
December 1, 2012 126,902.50 126,902.50
June 1, 2013 1,600,000.00 126,902.50 1,726,902.50 1,853,805.00
December 1, 2013 98,902.50 98,902.50
June 1, 2014 1,655,000.00 98,902.50 1,753,902.50 1,852,805.00
December 1, 2014 68,285.00 68,285.00
June 1, 2015 1,715,000.00 68,285.00 1,783,285.00 1,851,570.00
December 1, 2015 35,700.00 35,700.00
June 1, 2016 1,785.000.00 35,700.00 1,820,700.00 1,856.400.00
Totals $18,640,000.00 $5,464,517.75 $24,104,517.75 $24,104,517.75
Source: E. J. De La Rosa & Co., Inc.
SECURITY FOR THE BONDS

Base Rental

The Bonds are payable from Base Rental payments and from amounts on hand from time to time
in the funds and accounts established under the Trust Agreement (except for amounts on deposit in the
Rebate Fund and the Costs of Issuance Fund pursuant to the terms of the Trust Agreement). Payment of
the principal of and interest on the Bonds is secured by a pledge of Base Rental payments and said
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amounts. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, certain of the rights, title and interest of the Authority under
the Lease and under the Property Lease will be assigned to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners,
including, without limitation, its right to receive Base Rental payments under the Lease, but excluding
certain rights to payment of the Authority’s expenses, its right to indemnification and its right to receive
certain notices under the Lease and the Property Lease. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Trustee will
receive Base Rental payments for the benefit of the Owners. The City is required under the Lease, subject
to its abatement rights discussed below, to make semi-annual Base Rental payments from legally
available funds, which payments are to be calculated to be sufficient to pay the principal of and interest
on the Bonds as and when due.

Additional Rental payments due from the City under the Lease include amounts sufficient to pay
certain taxes and assessments charged with respect to the Property, amounts necessary to replenish the
Reserve Fund to the Reserve Requirement, insurance premiums, any rebate amounts required to be paid
to the United States Treasury, all fees, costs and expenses of the Trustee, and certain other administrative
expenses due under the Trust Agreement and the Lease, including amounts due to the Bond Insurer. The
City is also responsible for the repair and maintenance of the Property required as a result of ordinary
wear and tear and want of care on the part of the City during the term of the Lease.

Rental payments will be abated in the event of material damage to, material destruction or
condemnation of, or a material title defect with respect to, the Property if and to the extent that the fair
rental value of the remaining portion of the Property is less than the remaining Base Rental payments.
Upon the issuance and delivery of the Bonds, the City will certify as to the fair rental value of each
Component of the Property.

The City has covenanted in the Lease to take such action as may be necessary to include and
maintain all Base Rental and Additional Rental in its annual budget and to make the necessary annual
appropriations therefor, as long as a portion of the Property with a fair rental value sufficient to support
rental payments under the Lease is available for the City’s use.

Should the City default under the Lease, the Lease and the Trust Agreement provide that the
Trustee may, with or without terminating the Lease, re-let the Property for the account of the City. In the
event the Trustee re-lets the Property without terminating the Lease, the Trustee may hold the City liable
for semi-annual payments of any cumulative net deficiency in Base Rental payments or Additional Rental
under the Lease. In lieu of the foregoing, so long as the Trustee does not terminate the Lease or the City’s
right to possession of the Property, the Trustee may sue to recover Base Rental payments as they become
due. The Trustee may not accelerate the City’s obligation to make Base Rental payments.

For a discussion of the terms of the Base Rental and Additional Rental payments and the risks
associated therewith, see “RISK  FACTORS,” “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY
LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND APPROPRIATIONS - Article XIIIB of California Constitution:
Limits on Appropriations” and “APPENDIX A — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS — LEASE” herein.

Reserve Fund

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the City is required to maintain amounts on deposit in the
Reserve Fund, which is held by the Trustee and pledged to the payment of principal of and interest on the
Bonds, in an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement. Amounts in the Reserve Fund are to be used
only for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds in the event amounts in the Debt Service
Fund are insufficient to make such payments. The Reserve Fund will be replenished from amounts
received as delinquent Base Rental payments, Additional Rental payments, proceeds of certain insurance
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and earnings on amounts held in such fund. The Reserve Requirement is equal to the least of (i) ten
percent (10%) of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds originally issued, (ii)) Maximum Annual
Debt Service, and (iii) one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of Average Annual Debt Service.

The Authority, upon the written direction of the City and with the prior written consent of the
Bond Insurer and the provision of notice to Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a Division of The
McGraw-Hill Companies (“S&P”), reserves the right to substitute, at any time and from time to time, one
or more letters of credit, surety bonds, bond insurance policies or other form of guarantee from a financial
institution, the long-term unsecured obligations of which are rated not less than “Aa” by Moody’s
Investors Service or “AA” by S&P in substitution for or in place of all or any portion of the Reserve
Requirement, under the terms of which the Trustee is unconditionally entitled to draw amounts when
required for the purposes of the Trust Agreement. See “APPENDIX A — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN
PROVISIONS OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS — TRUST AGREEMENT” herein.

Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy

The scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due will be guaranteed
under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy to be issued concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds by
the Bond Insurer. For a more detailed description of the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy and the
Bond Insurer, see “FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY” and “APPENDIX F —
SPECIMEN FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY” herein.

Insurance

Pursuant to the Lease, the City is required to secure and maintain (or cause to be secured and
maintained) at all times with insurers of recognized responsibility or through a program of self-insurance
(which may include risk sharing pools), insurance coverage on the Property as specified in the Lease,
including (1) “all risk” insurance against loss or damage to the Property (excluding damage caused by
earthquake and flood), (2) general liability coverage against claims for damages including death, personal
injury, bodily injury or property damage arising from operations involving the Property, with a combined
single limit of not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence (or such greater amount as may from time to time
be recommended by the City’s risk management officer or an independent insurance consultant retained
by the City for that purpose); provided, however, that the City’s obligations under this clause (2) may be
satisfied by self-insurance, (3) workers’ compensation insurance to cover all persons employed by the
City in connection with the Property and to cover liability for compensation under the California Labor
Code or any act supplemental thereto or in lieu thereof; provided, however, that the City’s obligations
under this clause (3) may be satisfied by self-insurance, (4) rental interruption insurance to cover loss,
total or partial, of the use of any Component of the Property as a result of any of the hazards covered by
the “all risk” insurance described above, covering a period of twenty-four (24) months, in an amount
equal to two times the then-applicable Reserve Requirement, and (5) a CLTA policy or policies of title
insurance for the Property in an amount not less than the initial aggregate principal amount of the Bonds.
Pursuant to the Lease, all policies or certificates issued by the respective insurers for insurance, with the
exception of workers’ compensation insurance, are required to provide that such policies or certificates
shall not be cancelled or materially changed without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the
Trustee. See “APPENDIX A — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL
DOCUMENTS — LEASE — Insurance” herein.

Investment of Moneys

Amounts on deposit in any fund or account held pursuant to the Trust Agreement will be invested
in Permitted Investments, subject to the conditions provided for in the Trust Agreement. All investment
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earnings on moneys on deposit in any fund or account held under the Trust Agreement will be transferred
to the Debt Service Fund, subject to the obligation of the City and/or the Authority to maintain the
Reserve Fund at the Reserve Requirement and to rebate certain amounts to the United States government
as required under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. See “APPENDIX A — SUMMARY
OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS — TRUST AGREEMENT”
herein.

FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY
Payment Pursuant to Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy

Ambac Assurance has made a commitment to issue the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy
relating to the Bonds effective as of the date of issuance of the Bonds. Under the terms of the Financial
Guaranty Insurance Policy, Ambac Assurance will pay to The Bank of New York, New York, New York
or any successor thereto (the “Insurance Trustee”) that portion of the principal of and interest on the
Bonds which shall become Due for Payment but shall be unpaid by reason of Nonpayment by the Obligor
(as such terms are defined in the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy). Ambac Assurance will make such
payments to the Insurance Trustee on the later of the date on which such principal and interest becomes
Due for Payment or within one business day following the date on which Ambac Assurance shall have
received notice of Nonpayment from the Trustee. The insurance will extend for the term of the Bonds
and, once issued, cannot be canceled by Ambac Assurance.

The Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy will insure payment only on stated maturity dates and
on mandatory sinking fund installment dates, in the case of principal, and on stated dates for payment, in
the case of interest. If the Bonds become subject to mandatory redemption and insufficient funds are
available for redemption of all outstanding Bonds, Ambac Assurance will remain obligated to pay
principal of and interest on outstanding Bonds on the originally scheduled interest and principal payment
dates including mandatory sinking fund redemption dates. In the event of any acceleration of the
principal of the Bonds, the insured payments will be made at such times and in such amounts as would
have been made had there not been an acceleration.

In the event the Trustee has notice that any payment of principal of or interest on a Bond which
has become Due for Payment and which is made to an Owner by or on behalf of the Authority has been
deemed a preferential transfer and theretofore recovered from its Owner pursuant to the United States
Bankruptcy Code in accordance with a final, nonappealable order of a court of competent jurisdiction,
such Owner will be entitled to payment from Ambac Assurance to the extent of such recovery if sufficient
funds are not otherwise available.

The Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy does not insure any risk other than Nonpayment, as
defined in the Policy. Specifically, the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy does not cover:

1. payment on acceleration, as a result of a call for redemption (other than mandatory sinking fund
redemption) or as a result of any other advancement of maturity;

payment of any redemption, prepayment or acceleration premium; or

3. nonpayment of principal or interest caused by the insolvency or negligence of any trustee
(including the Trustee), paying agent or bond registrar, if any.

If it becomes necessary to call upon the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, payment of
principal requires surrender of Bonds to the Insurance Trustee together with an appropriate instrument of
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assignment so as to permit ownership of such Bonds to be registered in the name of Ambac Assurance to
the extent of the payment under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy. Payment of interest pursuant to
the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy requires proof of Owner entitlement to interest payments and an
appropriate assignment of the Owner’s right to payment to Ambac Assurance.

Upon payment of the insurance benefits, Ambac Assurance will become the owner of the Bond,
appurtenant coupon, if any, or right to payment of principal or interest on such Bond and will be fully
subrogated to the surrendering Owner’s rights to payment.

In the event that Ambac Assurance were to become insolvent, any claims arising under the
Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy would be excluded from coverage by the California Insurance
Guaranty Association, established pursuant to the laws of the State of California.

Ambac Assurance Corporation

Ambac Assurance Corporation is a Wisconsin-domiciled stock insurance corporation regulated
by the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance of the State of Wisconsin and licensed to do business in
50 states, the District of Columbia, the Territory of Guam and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, with
admitted assets of approximately $6,115,000,000 (unaudited) and statutory capital of $3,703,000,000
(unaudited) as of December 31, 2002. Statutory capital consists of Ambac Assurance’s policyholders’
surplus and statutory contingency reserve. Standard & Poor’s Credit Markets Services, a Division of The
McGraw-Hill Companies, Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch, Inc. have each assigned a triple-A
financial strength rating to Ambac Assurance.

Ambac Assurance has obtained a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service to the effect that the
insuring of an obligation by Ambac Assurance will not affect the treatment for federal income tax
purposes of interest on such obligation and that insurance proceeds representing maturing interest paid by
Ambac Assurance under policy provisions substantially identical to those contained in its Financial
Guaranty Insurance Policy shall be treated for federal income tax purposes in the same manner as if such
payments were made by the Authority. No representation is made by Ambac Assurance regarding
the federal income tax treatment of payments that are made by Ambac Assurance under the terms
of the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy due to nonappropriation of funds by the City, as lessee
under the Lease.

Ambac Assurance makes no representation regarding the Bonds or the advisability of investing in
the Bonds and makes no representation regarding, nor has it participated in the preparation of, the Official
Statement other than the information supplied by Ambac Assurance and presented under the heading
“FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY.”

Available Information

The parent company of Ambac Assurance, Ambac Financial Group, Inc. (the “Company”), is
subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), and in accordance therewith files reports, proxy statements and other information with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). These reports, proxy statements and other
information can be read and copied at the SEC’s public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public
reference room. The SEC maintains an internet site at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy
and information statements and other information regarding companies that file electronically with the
SEC, including the Company. These reports, proxy statements and other information can also be read at
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the offices of the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. (the “NYSE”), 20 Broad Street, New York, New York
10005.

Copies of Ambac Assurance’s financial statements prepared in accordance with statutory
accounting standards are available from Ambac Assurance. The address of Ambac Assurance’s
administrative offices and its telephone number are One State Street Plaza, 19th Floor, New York, New
York 10004 and (212) 668-0340.

Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference

The following documents filed by the Company with the SEC (File No. 1-10777) are
incorporated by reference in this Official Statement:

1. The Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 23, 2003 and filed on
January 24, 2003;

2. The Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 25, 2003 and filed on
February 28, 2003;

3. The Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 25, 2003 and filed on
March 4, 2003;

. The Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 18, 2003 and filed on March 20, 2003;
5. The Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 19, 2003 and filed on March 26, 2003;

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 and
filed on March 28, 2003; and

7. The Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 25, 2003 and filed on March 31, 2003;

All documents subsequently filed by the Company pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange
Act after the date of this Official Statement will be available for inspection in the same manner as
described above in “Available Information.”

RISK FACTORS

Investment in the Bonds involves risks which may not be appropriate for certain investors. The
following is a discussion of certain risk factors which should be considered, in addition to other
matters set forth herein, in evaluating the Bonds for investment. The information set forth below does
not purport to be an exhaustive listing of the risks and other considerations which may be relevant to
an investment in the Bonds. In addition, the order in which the following information is presented is
not intended to reflect the relative importance of any such risks.

Bonds are Limited Obligations

The Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from the Base Rental payments
and amounts held in certain funds and accounts established under the Trust Agreement. The Bonds do
not constitute an obligation of the Authority for which the Authority is obligated to levy or pledge any
form of taxation or for which the Authority has levied or pledged any form of taxation. The obligation of
the City to make Base Rental payments under the Lease does not constitute an obligation of the City for
which the City is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation or for which the City has levied or
pledged any form of taxation. Neither the Bonds nor the obligation of the City to make Base Rental
payments constitutes an indebtedness of the Authority, the City, the County, the State or any political
subdivision of the State within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction.
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Availability of Moneys for Base Rental Payments

The City’s Base Rental payments and other payments due under the Lease (including insurance,
payment of costs of improvements, repair and maintenance of the Property, taxes and other governmental
charges and assessments levied against the Property) are not secured by any pledge of taxes or other
revenues of the City but are payable from any funds lawfully available to the City. Additionally, the City
may pledge such revenues to other obligations or purposes in the future, thus making them unavailable as
a source of payment of the Bonds. In the event the City’s revenue sources are less than its total
obligations, the City could choose to fund other municipal services before making Base Rental payments.
The same result could occur if, because of State Constitutional limits on expenditures, the City is not
permitted to appropriate and spend all of its available revenues. The City’s appropriations currently do
not exceed the limitation on appropriations under Article XIIIB of the California Constitution. See
“CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND APPROPRIATIONS —
Article XIIIB of California Constitution: Limits on Appropriations” and “APPENDIX C — CITY OF
OXNARD COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002” herein.

Abatement

Except to the extent of amounts held in the Reserve Fund or otherwise available to the Trustee for
payments with respect to the Bonds, the obligation of the City to make Base Rental payments will be
abated proportionately during any period which by reason of any damage or destruction or taking by
eminent domain or by condemnation there is substantial interference with the City’s right to use and
occupy the Property, such that the resulting payments of Base Rental represent fair rental value for the
right of use and possession of the item or portion of the Property not damaged, destroyed or taken. Such
abatement would continue for the period commencing with such damage, destruction or taking and
ending with the substantial completion of the replacement, repair or reconstruction permitting use and
occupancy by the City. In the event of any such damage, destruction or taking, the Lease will continue in
full force and effect and the City has waived any right to terminate the Lease by virtue of any such
damage or destruction or taking. The Trustee cannot terminate the Lease in the event of such damage,
destruction or taking.

In the event the Property is not repaired or replaced during the period that proceeds of the City’s
rental interruption insurance are available in lieu of related Base Rental payments (the City has
covenanted to maintain rental interruption insurance in an amount equal to two times the then-applicable
Reserve Requirement, except no such insurance must be maintained for damage or destruction due to or
caused by flood or earthquake) plus the period for which funds are available from the Reserve Fund, or in
the event that casualty insurance proceeds or condemnation award proceeds are insufficient to provide for
complete repair of the Property, as the case may be, there could be insufficient funds to cover payments to
Owners in full. See “APPENDIX A — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF PRINCIPAL
LEGAL DOCUMENTS — LEASE” herein.

Limited Recourse on Default

If the City defaults on its obligations to make Base Rental payments with respect to the Property,
the Trustee has the right to re-enter and re-let the Property. In the event such re-letting occurs, the City
would be liable for any deficiency in Base Rental payments that results therefrom. See “APPENDIX A —
SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS — LEASE” herein.

No assurance can be given, however, that the Trustee will be able to re-let the Property so as to

provide rental income sufficient to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds in a timely manner or that
such re-letting will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for
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federal or State tax purposes. The Trustee is not empowered to sell a fee simple interest in the Property
for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds. It is not certain whether a court would permit the exercise of
the remedies of repossession and re-letting with respect thereto. Any suit for money damages would be
subject to limitations on legal remedies against cities in California, including a limitation on enforcement
of judgments against funds needed to serve the public welfare and interest.

Seismic Activity; Flood Plain; Limited Insurance

Although the Lease does not require the City to maintain actuarially determined reserves to cover
payments of claims pursuant to casualty and liability insurance deductibles and for claims not covered by
the liability and casualty insurance, the City currently maintains such reserves. No assurance can be
given, however, that the City will continue to maintain such reserves. The casualty and liability insurance
required under the Lease will not cover losses due to earthquake or flood and the rental interruption
insurance required under the Lease will not cover interruption of Base Rental payments due to earthquake
or flood. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Insurance.”

The City, along with much of the State of California, shares a history of seismic activity and is
thus listed as a “Zone 4” earthquake area in the Uniform Building Code. A Zone 4 designation has the
most restrictive design requirements for new construction. The City standards for development, to which
the Components of the Property were subject, have been designed to reduce the risk to the public and
adequately mitigate seismic hazards.

There are no known major earthquake faults within the City; however, there are several active
faults located within a radius of approximately 50 miles from the City, including the San Andreas Fault
and the San Gabriel Fault. Activity along these faults could potentially result in damage to the buildings,
roads, bridges, and property within the City in the event of a major earthquake.

If a major earthquake were to occur, it may substantially damage or destroy all or a portion of the
Property, which could result in abatement of the Base Rental payments and, in turn, a default in the
payment of principal and interest on the Bonds. The chance that the occurrence of severe seismic activity
in the area of the Property could result in substantial damage and interference with the City’s right to use
all or a portion of the Property, and thereby result in an abatement of the Base Rental payments and a
default in the payment of the Bonds, is mitigated by the development standards discussed above.

The Property is located in a flood insurance rate zone designated by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (“FEMA”) as “Zone C.” According to FEMA, Zones B, C and X refer to flood
insurance rate zones that are not within the 100-year floodplain and are therefore not considered to pose a
flood hazard. Consequently, no flood insurance has been or will be obtained by the City with respect to
the Property. The term “100-year flood” refers to the flood elevation that has a one percent chance of
being equaled or exceeded in any given year. A base flood may also be referred to as a “100-year storm”
and the area inundated during the base flood is sometimes called the “100-year floodplain.” The 100-year
flood, which is the standard used by most federal and state agencies, is used by the National Flood
Insurance Program as the standard for floodplain management and to determine the need for flood
insurance.

No Acceleration Upon Default
In the event of a default in the payment of the Base Rental or the Bonds, there is no available
remedy of acceleration of the Bonds or of the total Base Rental payments due over the term of the Lease.

The City will only be liable for Base Rental payments on an annual basis and the Trustee would be
required to seek a separate judgment in each Fiscal Year for that Fiscal Year’s Base Rental payments.
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Substitution of Property

The Lease provides that, upon satisfaction of certain conditions and with the consent of the Bond
Insurer, the City may substitute other real property for one or more of the Components. See “THE
PROPERTY” and “APPENDIX A — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF PRINCIPAL
LEGAL DOCUMENTS — LEASE” herein. Although the Lease requires that the substitute property have
an annual fair rental value at least equal to the annual fair rental value of the Component being substituted,
the Lease does not require that the substituted property be of any particular type. Consequently, upon the
occurrence of an event of default under the Lease, a substituted Component could be more difficult to re-
let than the original Component.

Constitutional Limitations on Taxes and Appropriations

California law imposes various taxing, revenue and appropriations limitations on public agencies,
such as the City. See “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND
APPROPRIATIONS” below for a discussion of these limitations.

Loss of Tax Exemption

As discussed herein under “TAX MATTERS,” interest with respect to the Bonds could become
includable in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation retroactive to the date such Bonds
were issued as a result of acts or omissions of the Authority or the City in violation of its covenants in the
Trust Agreement and the Tax Certificate. Should such a violation occur and result in a loss of tax
exemption with respect to the Bonds, the Bonds are not subject to a special redemption and will remain
outstanding until maturity or until redeemed under the provisions contained in the Trust Agreement.

Bankruptcy

In addition to the limitation on remedies contained in the Trust Agreement, the rights and
remedies provided in the Trust Agreement and Lease may be limited by and are subject to the provisions
of federal bankruptcy laws, as now or hereafter enacted, and to other laws or equitable principles that may
affect the enforcement of creditors rights.

Under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code (Title 11, United States Code), which governs the
bankruptcy proceedings for public agencies such as the City, there are no involuntary petitions in
bankruptcy. If the City were to file a petition under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code, the Owners, the
Trustee and the Authority could be prohibited from taking any steps to enforce their rights under the
Lease, and from taking any steps to collect amounts due from the City under the Lease.

California State Budget

The State of California is facing a growing budget deficit, which has been estimated to range
between $26 billion (estimated by the California Department of Finance) and $34.6 billion (estimated by
Governor Gray Davis) over the next eighteen months. For the fiscal year 2003-04 State budget, the
Governor has proposed taking approximately $5.1 billion in revenues away from local governments,
primarily in the form of vehicle license fee transfers and redevelopment moneys. In light of the current
economic environment, no assurances can be given that the City’s general fund revenues will remain at
the same levels as in previous years. Moreover, a significant reduction in revenues available to the City
could adversely impact the City’s ability to make Base Rental payments.
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Economic, Political, Social and Environmental Conditions

Prospective investors are encouraged to evaluate current and prospective economic, political,
social and environmental conditions as part of an informed investment decision. Changes in economic,
political, social or environmental conditions on a local, state, federal and/or international level may
adversely affect investment risk generally. Such conditional changes may include (but are not limited to)
fluctuations in business production, consumer prices, or financial markets, unemployment rates,
technological advancements, shortages or surpluses in natural resources or energy supplies, changes in
law, social unrest, fluctuations in the crime rate, political conflict, acts of war or terrorism, environmental
damage and natural disasters.

CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY LIMITATIONS
ON TAXES AND APPROPRIATIONS

Article XIITIA of the California Constitution

Section 1(a) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution (“Article XIIIA”) limits the
maximum ad valorem tax on real property to one percent (1%) of full cash value (as defined in Section 2
of Article XIIIA), to be collected by each county and apportioned among the county and other public
agencies and funds according to law. Section 1(b) of Article XIIIA provides that the 1% limitation does
not apply to ad valorem taxes to pay interest or redemption charges on (a) indebtedness approved by the
voters prior to July 1, 1978, (b) any bonded indebtedness for the acquisition or improvement of real
property approved on or after July 1, 1978, by two-thirds of the votes cast by the voters voting on the
proposition, or (c) bonded indebtedness incurred by a school district or a community college district for
the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities or the acquisition or
lease of real property for school facilities, approved by fifty-five percent (55%) of the voters of the district,
but only if certain accountability measures are included in the proposition. Section 2 of Article XIIIA
defines “full cash value” to mean “the County Assessor's valuation of real property as shown on the
1975/76 tax bill under full cash value or, thereafter, the appraised value of real property when purchased,
newly constructed, or a change in ownership has occurred after the 1975 assessment.” The full cash value
may be adjusted annually to reflect inflation at a rate not to exceed two percent (2%) per year or to reflect
a reduction in the consumer price index or comparable data for the area under the taxing jurisdiction, or
reduced in the event of declining property values caused by substantial damage, destruction, or other
factors.

Legislation enacted by the State Legislature to implement Article XIIIA provides that
notwithstanding any other law, local agencies may not levy any ad valorem property tax that exceeds the
one percent (1%) limitation imposed by Article XIIIA except to pay debt service on indebtedness
approved by the voters as described above. In addition, legislation enacted by the California Legislature
to implement Article XIIIA provides that all taxable property is shown at full assessed value as described
above. Prior to fiscal year 1981-82, assessed valuations were reported at twenty-five percent (25%) of the
full value of the property. In conformity with this procedure, all taxable property value included in this
Official Statement (except as noted) is shown at one hundred percent (100%) of assessed value and all
general tax rates reflect the $1 per $100 of taxable value. Tax rates for voter-approved bonded
indebtedness and pension liability are also applied to 100% of assessed value.

In the June 1990 election, the voters of the State approved amendments to Article XIIIA
permitting the State Legislature to extend the replacement dwelling provisions applicable to persons over
55 to severely disabled homeowners for a replacement dwelling purchased or newly constructed on or
after June 5, 1990, and to exclude from the definition of “new construction” triggering reassessment
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improvements to certain dwellings for the purpose of making the dwelling more accessible to severely
disabled persons. In the November 1990 election, the voters of the State approved an amendment of
Article XIIIA to permit the State Legislature to exclude from the definition of “new construction” seismic
retrofitting improvements or improvements utilizing earthquake hazard mitigation technologies
constructed or installed in existing buildings after November 6, 1990. Since 1990, the voters have
approved several other minor exemptions from the reassessment provisions of Article XIIIA.

Future assessed valuation growth allowed under Article XIIIA (new construction, change of
ownership, two percent (2%) annual value growth) will be allocated among the jurisdictions that serve the
tax rate area within which the growth occurs. Local agencies and school districts will share the growth of
revenue from the tax rate area. Each year’s growth allocation becomes part of each agency’s allocation
the following year. Article XIIIA effectively prohibits the levying of any other ad valorem property tax
above the one percent (1%) limit except for taxes to support indebtedness approved by the voters as
described above.

Article XIIIB of the California Constitution

On November 6, 1979, California voters approved Proposition 4, the so-called Gann Initiative,
which added Article XIIIB to the California Constitution (“Article XIIIB”). In June 1990, Article XIIIB
was amended by the voters through their approval of Proposition 111. Article XIIIB of the California
Constitution limits the annual appropriations of the State and of any city, county, school district, authority,
or other political subdivision of the State to the level of appropriations for the prior fiscal year, as adjusted
annually for changes in the cost of living, population and cost of services rendered by the governmental
entity. The “base year” for establishing such appropriation limit is fiscal year 1978-79. Increases in
appropriations by a governmental entity are also permitted (i) if financial responsibility for providing
services is transferred to the governmental entity, or (ii) for emergencies so long as the appropriations
limits for the three years following the emergency are reduced to prevent any aggregate increase above
the Constitutional limit. Decreases are required where responsibility for providing services is transferred
from the government entity.

Appropriations of an entity of local government subject to Article XIIIB include generally any
authorization to expend during the fiscal year the proceeds of taxes levied by the State or other entity of
local government, exclusive of certain State subventions, refunds of taxes, benefit payments from
retirement, unemployment insurance and disability insurance funds. Appropriations subject to limitation
pursuant to Article XIIIB do not include debt service on indebtedness existing or legally authorized as of
January 1, 1979, on bonded indebtedness thereafter approved according to law by a vote of the electors of
the issuing entity voting in an election for such purpose, appropriations required to comply with mandates
of courts or the federal government, appropriations for qualified capital outlay projects, and
appropriations by the State of revenues derived from any increase in gasoline taxes and motor vehicle
weight fees above January 1, 1990 levels. “Proceeds of taxes” include, but are not limited to, all tax
revenues and the proceeds to any entity of government from (i) regulatory licenses, user charges, and user
fees to the extent such proceeds exceed the cost of providing the service or regulation, (ii) the investment
of tax revenues, and (iii) certain State subventions received by local governments. Article XIIIB includes
a requirement that if an entity’s revenues in any year exceed the amount permitted to be spent, the excess
must be returned by revising tax rates or fee schedules over the subsequent two fiscal years.

Proposition 111
In June 1990, the voters of the State approved Proposition 111, which amended the method of

calculating State and local appropriations limits. As amended in June 1990, the appropriations limit for
an entity of local government in each year is based on the limit for the prior year, adjusted annually for
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changes in the costs of living and changes in population, and adjusted, where applicable, for transfer of
financial responsibility of providing services to or from another unit of government. The “change in the
cost of living,” with respect to an entity of local government other than a school district or a community
college district is, at such entity of local government’s option, either (A) the change in the California per
capita personal income ("CPCPI") from the preceding year, or (B) the change in the local assessment roll
from the preceding year for the jurisdiction due to the addition of local nonresidential new construction,
as selected annually by such entity of local government by a recorded vote of such entity's governing
body. Previously, the lower of the CPCPI or the United States Consumer Price Index was used. The
“change in population” for a local agency for a calendar year for each city and county, means the change
in population between January 1 of the next calendar year and January 1 of the calendar year in question,
as estimated by the State Department of Finance pursuant to Section 2227 of the California Revenue and
Taxation Code, for either (A) within its own jurisdiction, or (B) for a city only, within the county in
which the city is located. Previously, a city only could use the change of population within its own
jurisdiction. Each city shall select its change in population annually by a recorded vote of the governing
body of the City.

As amended by Proposition 111, the appropriations limit is tested over consecutive two-year
periods. Any excess of the aggregate “proceeds of taxes” received by the City over such two-year period
above the combined appropriations limits for those two years is to be returned to taxpayers by reductions
in tax rates or fee schedules over the subsequent two years.

Proposition 111 also recomputed the appropriations limit for the fiscal year by adjusting the fiscal
year 1986-87 limit by the CPCPI for the three subsequent years. Proposition 111 also excluded
appropriation for “all qualified capital outlay Expansion Projects, as defined by the Legislature” from the
definition of “appropriations subject to limitation.”

Article XIIIB allows voters to approve a temporary waiver of a government's Article XIIIB limit.
Such a waiver is often referred to as a “Gann limit waiver.” The length of any such waiver is limited to
four years. The Gann limit waiver does not provide any additional revenues to the City or allow the City
to finance additional services.

Base Rental and Additional Rental payments are subject to the Article XIIIB appropriations
limitations. According to the City’s audited financial statements for Fiscal Year 2001-02, the City
calculated its appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2002-03 at $89,509,928. For Fiscal Year 2002-03, the
City has budgeted its appropriations limit at $99,352,069. The City's appropriations have never exceeded
the limitation on appropriations under Article XIIIB of the California Constitution. The impact of the
appropriations limit on the City's financial needs in the future is unknown.

Articles XIIIC and XIIID of the California Constitution

On November 5, 1996, the voters of the State approved Proposition 218, known as the “Right to
Vote on Taxes Act.” Proposition 218 added Article XIIIC (“Article XIIIC”) and Article XIIID (“Article
XIIID”) to the California Constitution, which contain a number of provisions affecting the ability of the
City to levy and collect both existing and future taxes, assessments, fees and charges. The interpretation
and application of certain provisions of Proposition 218 will ultimately be determined by the courts with
respect to some of the matters discussed below. It is not possible at this time to predict with certainty the
future impact of such interpretations. The provisions of Proposition 218, as so interpreted and applied,
may affect the City's ability to meet certain obligations.

Article XIIIC requires that all new local taxes be submitted to the electorate before they become
effective. Taxes for general governmental purposes require a majority vote and taxes for specific
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purposes, even if deposited in a general fund such as the City's General Fund, require a two-thirds vote.
Article XIIIC further provides that any general purpose tax imposed, extended or increased, without voter
approval, after December 31, 1994, may continue to be imposed only if approved by a majority vote in an
election which must be held within two years of November 5, 1996. The City has not so imposed,
extended or increased any such taxes which are currently in effect.

Article XIIIC also expressly extends the initiative power to give voters the power to reduce or
repeal local taxes, assessments, fees and charges, regardless of the date such taxes, assessments, fees and
charges were imposed. Article XIIIC expands the initiative power to include reducing or repealing
assessments, fees and charges, which had previously been considered administrative rather than
legislative matters and therefore beyond the initiative power. This extension of the initiative power is not
limited by the terms of Article XIIIC to fees imposed after November 6, 1996, and absent other legal
authority could result in the retroactive reduction in any existing taxes, assessments, or fees and charges.
No assurance can be given that the voters of the City will not, in the future, approve initiatives which
reduce or repeal, or prohibit the future imposition or increase of, local taxes, assessments, fees or charges
currently comprising a substantial part of the City's General Fund. “Assessments,” “fees” and “charges”
are not defined in Article XIIIC, and it is unclear whether these terms are intended to have the same
meanings for purposes of Article XIIIC as for Article XIIID described below. If not, the scope of the
initiative power under Article XIIIC potentially could include any General Fund local tax, assessment, or
fee not received from or imposed by the federal or State government or derived from investment income.

The City does not levy any property related “fees” or “charges” that it considers subject to
challenge under Article XIIIC.

The voter approval requirements of Proposition 218 reduce the flexibility of the City to raise
revenues for the General Fund, and no assurance can be given that the City will be able to impose, extend
or increase such taxes in the future to meet increased expenditure needs.

Article XIIID also added several new provisions relating to how local agencies may levy and
maintain “assessments” for municipal services and programs. These provisions include, among other
things, (i) a prohibition against assessments which exceed the reasonable cost of the proportional special
benefit conferred on a parcel, (ii) a requirement that the assessment must confer a “special benefit,” as
defined in Article XIIID, over and above any general benefits conferred, and (iii) a majority protest
procedure which involves the mailing of a notice and a ballot to the record owner of each affected parcel,
a public hearing and the tabulation of ballots weighted according to the proportional financial obligation
of the affected party. “Assessment” in Article XIIID is defined to mean any levy or charge upon real
property for a special benefit conferred upon the real property and applies to landscape and maintenance
assessments for open space areas, street medians, street lights and parks. The City has followed all of the
requirements of Article XIIID in connection with the formation of all of its existing landscape and
lighting districts through which it has financed open space areas, street medians, street lights and parks,
and intends to continue such compliance.

In addition, Article XIIID added several provisions affecting “fees” and “charges,” defined for
purposes of Article XIIID to mean “any levy other than an ad valorem tax, a special tax, or an assessment,
imposed by a [local government] upon a parcel or upon a person as an incident of property ownership,
including a user fee or charge for a property related service.” All new and existing property related fees
and charges must conform to requirements prohibiting, among other things, fees and charges which
(i) generate revenues exceeding the funds required to provide the property related service, (ii) are used for
any purpose other than those for which the fees and charges are imposed, (iii) are for a service not
actually used by, or immediately available to, the owner of the property in question, or (iv) are used for
general governmental services, including police, fire or library services, where the service is available to
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the public at large in substantially the same manner as it is to property owners. Depending on the
interpretation of what constitutes a “property related fee” under Article XIIID, there could be future
restrictions on the ability of the City's General Fund to charge its enterprise funds for various services
provided. Further, before any property related fee or charge may be imposed or increased, written notice
must be given to the record owner of each parcel of land affected by such fee or charge. The City must
then hold a hearing upon the proposed imposition or increase, and if written protests against the proposal
are presented by a majority of the owners of the identified parcels, the City may not impose or increase
the fee or charge. Moreover, except for fees or charges for wastewater, water and refuse collection
services, or fees for electrical and gas service, which are not treated as “property related” for purposes of
Article XIIID, no property related fee or charge may be imposed or increased without majority approval
by the property owners subject to the fee or charge or, at the option of the local agency, two-thirds voter
approval by the electorate residing in the affected area.

Proposition 62

A statutory initiative (“Proposition 62”°) was adopted by the voters of the State at the November 4,
1986 general election which (a) requires that any tax for general governmental purposes imposed by local
governmental entities be approved by resolution or ordinance adopted by two-thirds vote of the
governmental agency’s legislative body and by a majority of the electorate of the governmental entity, (b)
requires that any special tax (defined as taxes levied for other than general governmental purposes)
imposed by a local governmental entity be approved by a two-thirds vote of the voters within the
jurisdiction, (c) restricts the use of revenues from a special tax to the purposes or for the service for which
the special tax is imposed, (d) prohibits the imposition of ad valorem taxes on real property by local
governmental entities except as permitted by Article XIIIA, (e) prohibits the imposition of transaction
taxes and sales taxes on the sale of real property by local governmental entities, and (f) requires that any
tax imposed by a local governmental entity on or after August 1, 1985 be ratified by a majority vote of the
electorate within two years of the adoption of the initiative or be terminated by November 15, 1988. The
requirements imposed by Proposition 62 were generally upheld by the California Supreme Court in Santa
Clara County Local Transportation Authority v. Guardino, 11 Cal.4th 220; 45 Cal.Rptr.2d 207 (1995).

Proposition 62 applies to the imposition of any taxes or the effecting of any tax increases after its
enactment in 1986, but the requirements of Proposition 62 are subsumed by the requirements of
Proposition 218 for the imposition of any taxes or the effecting of any tax increases after November 5,
1996. See “— Articles XIIIC and XIIID of the California Constitution” above.

The City has not imposed any taxes or effected any tax increases after the enactment of
Proposition 62 in 1986 and prior to the effective date of Proposition 218 on November 5, 1996, other than
special taxes that were approved by a vote of two-thirds of the applicable electorate.

Future Initiatives

Article XIIIA, Article XIIIB, Article XIIIC and Article XIIID, and Propositions 62, 111 and 218,
were each adopted as measures that qualified for the ballot pursuant to California's constitutional
initiative process. From time to time other initiative measures could be adopted, affecting the ability of
the City to increase revenues and to increase appropriations.

THE AUTHORITY

The Authority is a joint exercise of powers entity duly organized and existing under and by virtue
of the laws of the State of California pursuant to a Joint Powers Agreement, dated as of October 8, 1991,
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as amended on April 21, 1992 (the “JPA”), by and between the City, the Redevelopment Agency of the
City of Oxnard and the Housing Authority of the City of Oxnard. The Authority was created on October
8, 1991, to finance capital improvements, working capital, liability and other insurance needs or projects.

The Authority is governed by a five-member Board of Directors. The members of the Board are

listed below:

Name Office

Tom Conway Chairman
Charles Covarrubias Vice Chairman
Dr. Sonny Okada Board Member
Francisco J. Dominguez Board Member
Patricia Maki Board Member

The Authority is also served by the officers listed below who, in the case of the Authority
Controller and General Counsel to the Authority, serve in these capacities by virtue of their duties as
Finance and Management Services Director and City Attorney, respectively, or, in the case of the
Authority Secretary, is appointed by officers of the Authority and serves at the pleasure of the Authority’s
Board of Directors. The officers are:

Name Position

Stan Kleinman Controller

Gary Gillig General Counsel
Jill Beaty Secretary

Neither the Authority nor its directors have any obligations or liability to the owners of the Bonds
with respect to the payment of Base Rental by the City under the Lease, or with respect to the
performance of the City of other covenants made by it in the Lease.

THE PROPERTY

The Property, which the City is leasing pursuant to the Lease, consists of the following
Components, each located in the City.

(1

2)

Oxnard Library. The City’s main library facility is a modern steel and brick building
located at 251 South A Street, adjacent to the Civic Center. Completed in 1990 as part of
a new Civic Center, the Library is an established meeting place and focal point for the
community, serving a population of over 140,000. In addition to the usual collection of
books, the Library also contains meeting rooms used by City staff and others. The
Library occupies approximately 72,000 square feet and is of steel construction with a
brick facade. The City has insured the Library for $13,500,000.

Administrative Annex Building. The Administrative Annex, located at 300 West Third
Street, is a four-story, 34,533-square foot structure used as the City's administration
building. The annex was built in 1967 and provides offices for the City Council, City
Manager's Department, Finance Department, Information Systems Division and Human

24



Resources Department. The Administrative Annex has been subject to significant
exterior and interior renovation in the past two years, including a remodel of the first
floor to accommodate the Human Resources Department and upgrades to the HVAC and
elevator systems. The City has insured the Administrative Annex for $6,500,000.

The Lease provides that, if no default or event of default has occurred and is continuing under the
Lease, the City may, with the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer, acquire any Component from the
Authority, free and clear of the Authority’s rights under the Lease, upon substituting another component
therefor; provided, however, that such substitute component must have an annual fair rental value at least
equal to 100% of the maximum amount of Base Rental payments attributable to the Component being
replaced becoming due in the then-current Lease Year or in any subsequent Lease Year. See
“APPENDIX A — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS —
LEASE” herein.

TAX MATTERS
Bond Counsel Opinion

In the opinion of Pillsbury Winthrop LLP, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel, based upon an
analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, interest on the Bonds is excludable
from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from State of California personal
income taxes. Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is not a specific
preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes. However,
Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted current earnings in calculating corporate
alternative minimum taxable income. A copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set
forth in Appendix D hereto and will accompany the Bonds.

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), imposes various restrictions,
conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes
of interest received by persons such as the Owners of the Bonds. The City and the Authority have
covenanted to comply with certain restrictions designed to ensure that interest on the Bonds will not be
included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply with those covenants may
result in interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly
from the date of issuance of the Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance with those
covenants. Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions
taken (or not taken) or events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the Bonds may
affect the tax status of interest on the Bonds.

Certain requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Trust Agreement, the Lease
and other relevant documents may be changed and certain actions (including, without limitation,
defeasance of the Bonds) may be taken or omitted under the circumstances and subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in such documents, upon the advice or with the approving opinion of nationally
recognized bond counsel. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to any Bond or the interest thereon if
any such change occurs or action is taken upon the advice or approval of bond counsel other than Bond
Counsel.

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to advise in the future whether any events after the date of
issuance of the Bonds may affect the federal or state tax status of interest on the Bonds or the tax
consequences of ownership of the Bonds. No assurance can be given that future legislation, including
amendments to the Code or interpretations thereof, if enacted into law, will not contain provisions, which
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could directly or indirectly reduce the benefit of the excludability of the interest on the Bonds from gross
income for federal income tax purposes.

Although Bond Counsel has rendered an opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from
gross income for federal gross income and California State personal income tax purposes, a Bondholder's
federal and State tax liability may otherwise be affected by the ownership or disposition of the Bonds.
The nature and extent of these other tax consequences will depend upon the Bondholder’s other items of
income or deduction. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, prospective purchasers of the
Bonds should be aware that: (i) Section 265 of the Code denies a deduction for interest on indebtedness
incurred or continued to purchase or carry the Bonds, or in the case of a financial institution, that portion
of a holder's interest expense allocated to interest on the Bonds; (ii) with respect to insurance companies
subject to the tax imposed by Section 831 of the Code, Section 832(b)(5)(B)(i) reduces the deduction for
loss reserves by 15% of the sum of certain items, including interest on the Bonds; (iii) with respect to life
insurance companies, life insurance company taxable income subject to the tax imposed by Section 801 of
the Code is determined by permitting deductions for certain dividends received but not to the extent such
dividend is from a non-insurance corporation and is out of tax-exempt interest, including interest on the
Bonds; (iv) interest on the Bonds earned by certain foreign corporations doing business in the United
States could be subject to a branch profits tax imposed by Section 884 of the Code; (V) passive investment
income, including interest on the Bonds, may be subject to federal income taxation under Section 1375 of
the Code for Subchapter S corporations that have Subchapter C earnings and profits at the close of the
taxable year if greater than 25% of the gross receipts of such Subchapter S corporation is passive
investment income; (vi) Section 86 of the Code requires recipients of certain Social Security and certain
Railroad Retirement benefits to take into account, in determining the taxability of such benefits, receipts
or accruals of interest on the Bonds; and (vii) under Section 32(i) of the Code, receipt of investment
income, including interest on the Bonds, may disqualify the recipient thereof from obtaining the earned
income credit. Bond Counsel has expressed no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences.
Accordingly, before purchasing any of the Bonds, all potential purchasers should consult their tax
advisors concerning collateral tax consequences with respect to the Bonds.

Risk of Audit by Internal Revenue Service

The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt
obligations to determine whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is
includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. No assurances can
be given as to whether or not the Service will commence an audit of the Bonds. If an audit is commenced,
under current procedures the Service is likely to treat the Authority as the taxpayer and the owners of the
Bonds may have no right to participate in such procedure.

Bond Counsel’s opinion represents its legal judgment based upon its review of existing law,
regulations, rulings, judicial decisions, and other authorities, and upon the covenants and representations
of the parties and such other facts as it has deemed relevant to render such opinion, and is not a guarantee
of a result. Neither the Underwriter nor Bond Counsel is obligated to defend the tax-exempt status of the
Bonds. Neither the Authority nor Bond Counsel is responsible to pay or reimburse the costs of any owner
with respect to any audit or litigation relating to the Bonds.

Original Issue Discount/Premium
To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at
maturity of such Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the

term of such Bonds), the difference constitutes “original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the
extent properly allocable to each owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Bonds which is excluded from
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gross income for federal income tax purposes. For this purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of
the Bonds is the first price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the Bonds is sold to the
public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of
underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers). The original issue discount with respect to any maturity
of the Bonds accrues daily over the term to maturity of such Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate
compounded semiannually (with straight-line interpolations between compounding dates). The accruing
original issue discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon
disposition (including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bonds. Owners of the Bonds
should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Bonds with
original issue discount, including the treatment of purchasers who do not purchase such Bonds in the
original offering to the public at the first price at which a substantial amount of such Bonds is sold to the
public.

Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount higher than their
principal amount payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) (“Premium Bonds™) will
be treated as having amortizable bond premium. No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond
premium in the case of bonds, like Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross income
for federal income tax purposes. However, the amount of tax-exempt interest received, and a purchaser’s
basis in a Premium Bond, will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond premium properly allocable
to such purchaser. Owners of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the
proper treatment of amortizable bond premium in their particular circumstances.

RATINGS

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies (“S&P”) has
assigned its municipal bond rating of “AAA” to the Bonds based upon the issuance of the Financial
Guaranty Insurance Policy by the Bond Insurer. In addition, S&P has assigned an underlying municipal
bond rating of “A” to the Bonds. There is no assurance that any such rating will be in effect for any given
period of time or that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the applicable rating
agency if, in the judgment of such agency, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or
withdrawal may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. Such ratings reflect only the
views of the rating agency and an explanation of the significance of any rating may be obtained only from
the rating agency furnishing the same.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The Authority will covenant in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement to provide certain financial
information and operating data relating to the City and the Authority and notices of certain events, if
material. Such information and notices will be filed by the Authority with certain Nationally Recognized
Municipal Securities Repositories. The specific nature of the information to be provided is set forth in the
Continuing Disclosure Agreement, a form of which is attached hereto as Appendix E. This covenant has
been made in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with Securities and Exchange Commission
Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5), as amended. The Authority has never failed to provide any previous continuing
disclosure or notices of material events. See “APPENDIX E - FORM OF CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT?” herein.
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UNDERWRITING

The Bonds are being purchased by E. J. De La Rosa & Co., Inc. (the “Underwriter”). The
Underwriter has agreed to purchase the Bonds at a price of $19,048,865.90 (which represents the
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds less an Underwriter’s discount of $161,236.00, plus an original
issue premium of $570,101.90).

The contract of purchase pursuant to which the Bonds are being purchased by the Underwriter
provides that the Underwriter will purchase all of the Bonds if any are purchased. The obligation of the
Underwriter to make such purchase is subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in the contract of
purchase.

The Underwriter may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers and others at prices or yields
different from the prices or yields stated on the cover page of this Official Statement. In addition, the
offering prices or yields may be changed from time to time by the Underwriters.

Although the Underwriter expects to maintain a secondary market in the Bonds after the initial
offering, no guarantee can be made that such a market will develop or be maintained by the Underwriter
or others.

LITIGATION

The City and the Authority will certify, and the City Attorney will render opinions on behalf of
the City and the Authority upon the issuance of the Bonds to the effect that, there is no action, suit or
proceeding known to the City or the Authority to be pending or threatened, restraining or enjoining the
execution or delivery of the Bonds, the Lease or the Trust Agreement or in any way contesting or
affecting the validity of the foregoing or any proceeding of the City or the Authority taken with respect to
any of the foregoing or that will materially affect the City’s ability to pay Base Rental payments when due.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

Pillsbury Winthrop LLP, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel, will render an opinion with
respect to the Bonds in substantially the form set forth in Appendix D hereto. Copies of such opinion will
be furnished to the Underwriter at the time of delivery of the Bonds. Certain legal matters will be passed
upon for the City and the Authority by the City Attorney and by Disclosure Counsel, Pillsbury Winthrop
LLP, Los Angeles, California.

MISCELLANEOUS

The purpose of this Official Statement is to supply information to prospective buyers of the
Bonds. Quotations from and summaries and explanations of the Bonds and other documents contained
herein do not purport to be complete and reference is made to said documents for full and complete
statements of their provisions.

Appropriate City and Authority officials, acting in their official capacity, have reviewed this
Official Statement and have determined that as of the date thereof the information contained herein is, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, true and correct in all material respects and does not contain an
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the
statements made, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. The
appropriate City and Authority officials will execute a Certificate to this effect upon delivery of the Bonds.
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This Official Statement and its distribution have been duly authorized and approved by the City
and the Authority.

CITY OF OXNARD FINANCING AUTHORITY

By: /s/ Stan Kleinman
Controller
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APPENDIX A
SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS

The following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Trust Agreement, the Lease and the
Property Lease. This summary does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by
reference to said documents.

SELECTED DEFINITIONS
“Additional Rental” means the amounts specified as such in the Lease.

“Annual Debt Service” means, for any Bond Year, the sum of (1) the interest payable on all
Outstanding Bonds in such Bond Year, assuming that all Outstanding serial Bonds are retired as
scheduled and that all Outstanding term Bonds, if any, are redeemed or paid from sinking fund payments
as scheduled (except to the extent that such interest is to be paid from the proceeds of the sale of any
Bonds), and (2) the principal amount of all Outstanding Bonds maturing by their terms in such Bond Year.

“Authority Representative” means the Controller of the Authority or another official designated
by such officer and authorized to act on behalf of the Authority under or with respect to the Trust
Agreement and all other agreements related thereto.

“Authorized Denomination” means $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

“Average Annual Debt Service” means the amount determined by dividing the sum of all Annual
Debt Service due in each of the Bond Years following the date of such calculation by the number of such
Bond Years.

“Base Rental” means the amounts specified as such in the Lease, as such amounts may be
adjusted from time to time in accordance with the terms of the Lease, but does not include Additional
Rental.

“Bond Insurer” means Ambac Assurance Corporation, a Wisconsin-domiciled stock insurance
company, or any successor thereto.

“Bond Register” means the registration books referred to in the Trust Agreement.

“Bond Year” means the period of twelve consecutive months commencing on June 2 and ending
on June 1 in any year during which Bonds are or will be Outstanding; provided, however, the first Bond
Year will commence on the Closing Date and end on June 1, 2003, and that the final Bond Year will end
on the date on which the Bonds are fully paid or redeemed.

“Business Day” means a day which is not a Saturday or Sunday or a day on which banking
institutions are authorized or required by law to be closed in the State for commercial banking purposes.

“Certificate of the Authority” means an instrument in writing signed by the Chairman, the Vice
Chairman, the Secretary, or the Controller of the Authority, or by any other officer of the Authority duly
authorized for that purpose.



“Certificate of the City” means an instrument in writing signed by the City Manager (or his or her
designee) or the Finance and Management Services Director (or his or her designee) of the City, or by any
other official of the City duly authorized for that purpose.

“City Representative” means the City Manager or the Finance and Management Services Director
of the City or another official designated by either such officer and authorized to act on behalf of the City
under or with respect to the Trust Agreement and all other agreements related thereto.

“Closing Date” means May 22, 2003, the date of delivery of the Bonds to the initial purchasers
thereof.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Component” means each Component of the Property as set forth in the Lease, or any property
substituted therefor pursuant the Lease.

“Computation Year” means with respect to the Bonds the period beginning on the Closing Date
and ending on June 1, 2003, and thereafter each successive twelve month period commencing on each
June 2 and ending on the following June 1.

“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means that certain Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated
the date of issuance and delivery of the Bonds, by and between the Authority and the Trustee, as
dissemination agent, as originally executed and as it may be amended from time to time in accordance
with the terms thereof.

“Costs of Issuance” mean all the costs of issuing and delivering the Bonds, including, but not
limited to, all printing and document preparation expenses in connection with the Trust Agreement, the
Lease, the Property Lease, the Bonds, and the preliminary and final official statements pertaining to the
Bonds; rating agency fees; Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy premium; CUSIP Service Bureau charges;
consultant fees; market study fees; any computer and other expenses incurred in connection with the
issuance of the Bonds; the initial fees and expenses of the Trustee and any paying agent (including,
without limitation, origination fees and first annual fees payable in advance); and other fees and expenses
incurred in connection with the issuance, execution, and delivery of the Bonds, including the initial rental
interruption insurance premium, to the extent such fees and expenses are approved by the City.

“Costs of Issuance Fund” means the fund of that name established pursuant to the Trust
Agreement.

“Debt Service Fund” means the fund of that name established pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

“Depository” means DTC and its successors and assigns or, if (a) the then Depository resigns
from its functions as securities depository of the Bonds, or (b) the City discontinues use of the Depository
pursuant to the Trust Agreement, any other securities depository which agrees to follow procedures
required to be followed by a securities depository in connection with the Bonds and which is selected by

the City with the consent of the Trustee.

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors and
assigns.

“Escrow Agent” means Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and its successors and assigns.
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“Escrow Agreement” means the Escrow Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2003, by and between the
Authority and the Escrow Agent.

“Escrow Fund” means the fund of that name established under the Escrow Agreement.

“Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy” means the financial guaranty insurance policy issued by
the Bond Insurer insuring the payment when due of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as provided
therein.

“Government Obligations” means (i) direct obligations of the United States of America
(including obligations issued or held in book-entry form on the books of the Department of the Treasury)
or (ii) senior debt obligations of other United States government sponsored agencies approved by the
Bond Insurer.

“Independent Counsel” means an attorney or firm of attorneys of recognized national standing in
the field of municipal finance selected by the City.

“Information Services” means Financial Information, Incorporated’s “Financial Daily Called
Bond Service,” 30 Montgomery Street, 10th Floor, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302, Attention: Editor;
Kenny Information Service “Called Bond Service,” 55 Broad Street, 28 Floor, New York, New York
10004; Moody’s Investors Service ‘“Municipal and Government,” 5250 77 Center Drive, Suite 150,
Charlotte, NC 28217, Attention: Called Bonds Department and Standard & Poor’s “Called Bond Record,”
25 Broadway, 3rd Floor, New York, New York 10004; or, in accordance with then-current guidelines of
the Securities and Exchange Commission, to such other services providing information with respect to
called bonds, or to such services, as the Authority may indicate in a Certificate of the Authority delivered
to the Trustee.

“Insurance Proceeds Fund” means the fund of that name established pursuant to the Trust
Agreement.

“Interest Payment Date” means June 1 and December 1 in each year, commencing June 1, 2003,
so long as any Bonds remain Outstanding under the Trust Agreement.

“Investment Earnings” means interest received in respect of the investment of money on deposit
in any fund or account maintained under the Trust Agreement.

“Lease Term” means the term of the Lease as provided in the Trust Agreement and the Lease.

“Maximum Annual Debt Service” means at any point in time, with respect to the Bonds then
Outstanding, the greatest amount of Annual Debt Service on the Bonds in the then current or any
succeeding Bond Year prior to the maturity of the Bonds.

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service and its successors and assigns.

“1993 Bonds” means the $31,565,000 in original principal amount of the City of Oxnard
Financing Authority Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993.

“1993 Lease” means that certain Master Lease and Option to Purchase, dated as of
November 1, 1993, by and between the Authority, as lessor, and the City, as lessee.
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“1993 Property Lease” means that certain Property Lease, dated as of November 1, 1993, by and
between the City, as lessor, and the Authority, as lessee.

“Nominee” means, initially, Cede & Co., as nominee of the Depository, as determined from time
to time pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

“Outstanding,” when used as of any particular time with respect to any Bond, means (except for
Bonds held by the City or the Authority) any Bond theretofore issued under the Trust Agreement except:

(D) any Bond theretofore cancelled by the Trustee or surrendered to the Trustee for
cancellation;
2) any Bond which has been paid or is deemed to have been paid in accordance with

the Trust Agreement;

3) any Bond deemed no longer outstanding pursuant to the provisions of the Trust
Agreement; and

4) any Bond in lieu of or in exchange or in substitution for which another Bond or
other Bonds shall have been executed and delivered by the Trustee pursuant to the Trust
Agreement.

Notwithstanding anything in the Trust Agreement to the contrary, in the event that the principal
and/or interest due with respect to the Bonds shall be paid by the Bond Insurer pursuant to the Financial
Guaranty Insurance Policy, the Bonds shall remain Outstanding for all purposes, not be defeased or
otherwise satisfied, and not be considered paid by the Authority.

“Owner” means the registered owner, as indicated in the Bond Register, of any Bond.
“Participant” means a member of, or participant in, the Depository.

“Participating Underwriter” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement.

“Permitted Investments” mean, if and to the extent permitted by law and by any policy guidelines
promulgated by the City:

(D) Government Obligations.

2) Obligations of any of the following federal agencies, which obligations represent the full
faith and credit of the United States of America, including:

Export-Import Bank

Rural Economic Community Development Administration
U.S. Maritime Administration

Small Business Administration

U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (PHAs)
Federal Housing Administration

Federal Financing Bank
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)

“4)

)

(6)

(7

®)

©)

Direct obligations of any of the following federal agencies, which obligations are not
fully guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America:

Senior debt obligations issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) or
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC)

Obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation (REFCORP)

Senior debt obligations of the Federal Home Loan Bank System

Senior debt obligations of other United States government sponsored agencies approved
by the Bond Insurer

U.S. dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds, and bankers’ acceptances with
domestic commercial banks which have a rating on their short term certificates of deposit
on the date of purchase of “P-1” by Moody’s and “A-1"" or “A-1+" by S&P and maturing
not more than 360 calendar days after the date of purchase. (Ratings on holding
companies are not considered as the rating of the bank).

Commercial paper which is rated at the time of purchase in the single highest
classification, “P-1” by Moody’s and “A-1+" by S&P and which matures not more than
270 calendar days after the date of purchase.

Investments in money market funds rated “AAAm” or “AAAm-G” or better by S&P,
including funds for which the Trustee or its affiliates or subsidiaries provide investment
advisory or other management services.

Pre-refunded Municipal Obligations defined as follows: Any bonds or other obligations
of any state of the United States of America or of any agency, instrumentality, or local
governmental unit of any such state which are not callable at the option of the obligor
prior to maturity or as to which irrevocable instructions have been given by the obligor to
call on the date specified in the notice; and

(A) which are rated, based on an irrevocable escrow account or fund (the “escrow”),
in the highest rating category of Moody’s or S&P; or

(B) (i) which are fully secured as to principal and interest and redemption premium,
if any, by an escrow consisting only of cash or obligations described in clause (i)
of Government Obligations, which escrow may be applied only to the payment of
such principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on such bonds or
other obligations on the maturity date or dates thereof or the specified redemption
date or dates pursuant to such irrevocable instructions, as appropriate, and (ii)
which escrow is sufficient, as verified by a nationally recognized independent
certified public accountant, to pay principal of and interest and redemption
premium, if any, on the bonds or other obligations described in this paragraph on
the maturity date or dates specified in the irrevocable instructions referred to
above, as appropriate.

Municipal obligations rated “Aaa/AAA” or general obligations of states with a rating of
“A2/A” or higher by both Moody’s and S&P.

Investment agreements (including, without limitation, guaranteed investment contracts

(GICs)) approved in writing by the Bond Insurer and supported by appropriate opinions
of counsel.
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(10)  Other forms of investments (including repurchase agreements) approved in writing by the
Bond Insurer.

The value of the above investments shall be determined as follows:

(a) For the purpose of determining the amount in any fund, all Permitted Investments
credited to such fund shall be valued at fair market value. The Trustee shall determine
the fair market value based on accepted industry standards and from accepted industry
providers. Accepted industry providers shall include, but are not limited to, pricing
services provided by Financial Times Interactive Data Corporation, Merrill Lynch,
Salomon Smith Barney, Bear Stearns, or Lehman Brothers.

(b) As to certificates of deposit and bankers’ acceptances: The face amount thereof, plus
accrued interest thereon.

() As to any investment not specified above: The value thereof established by prior
agreement among the Trustee, the Bond Insurer, and the Authority or the City.

“Pledged Assets” means the Lease, the Property Lease, the Base Rental payments, and the
amounts on deposit from time to time in the funds and accounts established under the Trust Agreement.

“Principal Office of the Trustee” means the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee located
in Los Angeles, California, or such other office as the Trustee may designate.

“Property” means, collectively, all Components, including all buildings and improvements
thereon, and equipment; as described in the Property Lease, or any property substituted therefor pursuant
to the Lease, but excluding such Component of the Property for which a new Component has been
substituted in accordance with the Lease.

“Rebate Fund” means the fund of that name established pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

“Rebate Regulations” means the income tax regulations promulgated or proposed from time to
time by the United States Department of Treasury under Section 148 of the Code.

“Record Date” means the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding an Interest Payment Date,
whether or not such day is a Business Day.

“Redemption Notice” means the notice required to be given by the Trustee under the Trust
Agreement when redemption of the Bonds is authorized or required pursuant thereto.

“Repository” shall have the meaning given to such term in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.
“Reserve Fund” means the fund of that name established pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

“Reserve Requirement” means, as of any date of calculation, an amount equal to the least of
(1) ten percent (10%) of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds originally issued, (ii) Maximum
Annual Debt Service on the Bonds, or (iii) one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the Average
Annual Debt Service on the Bonds, which requirement shall be in cash or Permitted Investments or, upon
the receipt of the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer, may be satisfied by a letter of credit, surety
bond, insurance, or other obligation as provided in the Trust Agreement.
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“S&P” means Standard & Poor’s Ratings Service, a division of McGraw-Hill, and its successors
and assigns.

“Securities Depositories” means the following registered securities depositories: The Depository
Trust Company, 711 Stewart Avenue, Garden City, New York 11530, Fax (516) 227-4039 or 4190; or, in
accordance with then-current guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission, such other
securities depositories, or no such depositories, as the Authority may indicate in a Certificate of the
Authority delivered to the Trustee.

“Special Fund” means the fund of that name established pursuant to the Trust Agreement.
“State” means the State of California.

“Tax Certificate” means the Tax Certificate delivered by the Authority and the City on the
Closing Date, as the same may be amended or supplemented in accordance with its terms.

“Written Request of the Authority” means an instrument in writing signed by the Chairman, the
Vice Chairman, the Secretary, or the Controller of the Authority, or by any other officer of the Authority
duly authorized by the Authority for that purpose.

“Written Request of the City” means an instrument in writing signed by the City Manager (or his
or her designee) or the Finance and Management Services Director (or his or her designee) of the City, or
by any other official of the City duly authorized by the City for that purpose.

TRUST AGREEMENT

Assignment. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Authority does sell, assign, and transfer to the
Trustee, for the benefit of the Owners, all of the Authority’s rights, title, and interest in and to the Lease
and the Property Lease (excluding the Authority’s right to payment of its expenses, its right to
indemnification, and its right to receive certain notices under the Lease and the Property Lease), including,
without limitation, the Authority’s right to receive Base Rental, as well as its rights to enforce payment of
such Base Rental when due or otherwise to protect its interest in the event of a default by the City under
the Lease, in accordance with the terms thereof. The Base Rental and other rights of the Authority
assigned under the Trust Agreement shall be applied and the rights so assigned shall be exercised by the
Trustee as provided in the Trust Agreement.

Funds and Accounts. Under the Trust Agreement, the Trustee will establish and hold the Costs
of Issuance Fund, the Debt Service Fund, the Reserve Fund and the Rebate Fund and will invest, transfer
and disburse moneys on deposit therein. Subject to the terms of the Trust Agreement, the Authority has
pledged all amounts deposited from time to time in the funds established pursuant to the Trust Agreement
(except for amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund) to be held in trust for the benefit of the owners of the
Bonds.

Costs of Issuance Fund. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, there is established in trust a
special fund designated the “Costs of Issuance Fund,” which shall be held by the Trustee and which shall
be kept separate and apart from all other funds and moneys held by the Trustee. There shall be deposited
in the Costs of Issuance Fund that portion of the proceeds of the Bonds required to be deposited therein
pursuant to the Trust Agreement and such other amounts as specified by the Authority. The Trustee shall
disburse money from the Costs of Issuance Fund on such dates and in such amounts as are necessary to
pay Costs of Issuance, in each case, promptly after receipt of, and in accordance with, a written request of
an Authority Representative in the form attached to the Trust Agreement, together with invoices therefor.
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Any amounts remaining in the Costs of Issuance Fund on the earlier of (i) six (6) months after the Closing
Date (unless such date is extended pursuant to an opinion of Independent Counsel delivered to the
Trustee), or (ii) the date on which the Authority has notified the Trustee in writing that all Costs of
Issuance have been paid, shall be transferred to the Debt Service Fund for the payment of interest on the
Bonds.

Debt Service Fund. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, there is established in trust a
special fund designated as the “Debt Service Fund,” which shall be held by the Trustee and which shall be
kept separate and apart from all other funds and money held by the Trustee. The Debt Service Fund shall
be maintained by the Trustee until all required Base Rental is paid in full pursuant to the terms of the
Lease and the Bonds are no longer Outstanding, or until such earlier date as there are no Bonds
Outstanding.

Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, Base Rental and proceeds of rental
interruption insurance with respect to the Property, if any, received by the Trustee shall be deposited in
the Debt Service Fund. Any delinquent Base Rental payments and any proceeds of rental interruption
insurance with respect to the Property deposited in the Debt Service Fund shall be applied first to the
immediate payment of interest payments past due and then to the immediate payment of principal
payments past due according to the tenor of any Bond, and then to the Reserve Fund to the extent
necessary to make the amount on deposit therein equal to the Reserve Requirement. Any remaining
money representing delinquent Base Rental payments and any proceeds of insurance shall remain on
deposit in the Debt Service Fund to be applied in the manner provided in the Trust Agreement.

The Trustee shall pay from the Debt Service Fund on each Interest Payment Date an
amount which, together with monies on deposit therein, equals the interest then due and the principal then
due or required to be redeemed on such Interest Payment Date with respect to the Bonds, for payment of
the Bonds in accordance with the terms of the Trust Agreement. Any amounts remaining in the Debt
Service Fund on the day following an Interest Payment Date if the payments of interest or interest and
principal have been paid shall be deposited into the Reserve Fund to the extent that the amount therein is
less than the Reserve Requirement and the balance shall be retained in the Debt Service Fund.

Any proceeds of insurance (other than rental interruption or workers’ compensation
insurance) or awards in respect of a taking under the power of eminent domain not required pursuant to
the Lease to be used for repair, reconstruction, or replacement, and any other amounts provided for the
redemption of Bonds in accordance with the Trust Agreement, shall be deposited by the Trustee in the
Debt Service Fund. The Trustee shall, on the scheduled redemption date, withdraw from the Debt Service
Fund and pay to the Owners entitled thereto an amount equal to the redemption price of the Bonds to be
redeemed on such date for the payment of such redemption price in accordance with the terms of the
Trust Agreement.

Reserve Fund. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, there is established in trust a special
fund designated as the “Reserve Fund,” which shall be held by the Trustee and which shall be kept
separate and apart from all other funds and money held by the Trustee. The Reserve Fund shall be
maintained by the Trustee until the Base Rental is paid in full pursuant to the Lease and the Bonds are no
longer Outstanding or until there are no longer any Bonds Outstanding. There shall be deposited in the
Reserve Fund that portion of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds required to be deposited therein
pursuant to the Trust Agreement and all other amounts required to be deposited therein pursuant to the
Trust Agreement. So long as the amount deposited in the Reserve Fund satisfies the Reserve
Requirement, no deposit need be made in the Reserve Fund. All Investment Earnings received by the
Trustee on investment of moneys in the Reserve Fund shall be retained therein to the extent necessary to
increase the amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund to the Reserve Requirement. Any balance shall be
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transferred to the Debt Service Fund for the payment of principal and/or interest on the Bonds on the next
Interest Payment Date. Subject to the foregoing, all Investment Earnings on amounts in the Reserve Fund
shall be transferred as provided in the Trust Agreement. The Trustee shall promptly notify the Authority
and the City if the amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund is less than the Reserve Requirement. In such
event, the City is required, pursuant to the Lease, to deposit with the Trustee amounts sufficient to
maintain the Reserve Fund at the Reserve Requirement. Any amount deposited in the Reserve Fund in
excess of the Reserve Requirement shall be transferred and deposited in the Debt Service Fund.

If, on any Interest Payment Date, the amounts in the Debt Service Fund are less than the
principal and interest payments due with respect to the Bonds on such date, respectively, the Trustee shall
transfer from the Reserve Fund for credit to the Debt Service Fund amounts sufficient to make up such
deficiencies. In the event of any such transfer, the Trustee shall, within five (5) days thereafter, provide
written notice to the Authority, the Bond Insurer, and the City of the amount and the date of such transfer.

The Authority, upon the written direction of the City, upon prior written consent of the
Bond Insurer, and upon notice to S&P, reserves the right to substitute, at any time and from time to time,
one or more letters of credit, surety bonds, bond insurance policies, or other form of guarantee from a
financial institution, the long-term unsecured obligations of which are rated not less than “Aa” by
Moody’s or “AA” by S&P in substitution for or in place of all or any portion of the Reserve Requirement,
under the terms of which the Trustee is unconditionally entitled to draw amounts when required for the
purposes of the Trust Agreement. Upon deposit by the Authority, upon the written direction of the City,
with the prior consent of the Bond Insurer, with the Trustee of any such letter of credit, surety bond, bond
insurance policy, or other form of guarantee, the Trustee shall transfer to the City an amount equal to the
principal amount of such letter of credit, surety bond, bond insurance policy, or other form of guarantee
for deposit in a special fund to be established by the City (the “Special Fund”). The City shall use
amounts on deposit in the Special Fund, (i) to purchase Bonds in the secondary market or (ii) for other
capital projects of the City which Independent Counsel has determined will not adversely affect the
exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Bonds.

Rebate Fund. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, a special fund is created and designated
the “Rebate Fund” to be held by the Trustee. The Authority shall comply with the requirements in the
Trust Agreement and in the Tax Certificate. All money at any time deposited in the Rebate Fund shall be
held by the Trustee in trust, for payment to the United States Treasury. All amounts on deposit in the
Rebate Fund shall be governed by the Trust Agreement and the Tax Certificate, unless the Authority
obtains an opinion of Independent Counsel that the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds
will not be adversely affected for federal income tax purposes if such requirements are not satisfied.

Surplus. After (a) payment or redemption or provision for payment or redemption of all amounts
due with respect to the Bonds as provided in the Trust Agreement and payment of all fees, reimbursement
amounts and expenses of the Trustee and the Bond Insurer, and (b) the transfer of any additional amounts
required to be deposited into the Rebate Fund pursuant to the written instructions from an Authority
Representative or a City Representative in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement and the
Tax Certificate, any amounts remaining in any of the funds or accounts established under the Trust
Agreement (other than in the Rebate Fund) and not required for such purposes shall after payment of any
amounts due to the Trustee and the Bond Insurer be remitted to the Authority and used for any lawful
purpose; provided, however, in the event of defeasance, amounts shall not be remitted to the Authority
until the Authority has delivered or caused to be delivered to the Trustee an opinion of Independent
Counsel to the effect that remission of such amounts to the Authority shall not affect the exclusion from
gross income for federal income tax purposes the interest with respect to the Bonds.
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Repair or Replacement; Application of Insurance Proceeds and Condemnation Awards. If
any portion of the Property shall be damaged or destroyed, or shall be taken by eminent domain
proceedings, the City shall, as expeditiously as possible, continuously and diligently prosecute or cause to
be prosecuted the repair or replacement thereof, unless the City, with the prior written consent or at the
direction of the Bond Insurer, elects not to repair or replace the Property in accordance with the
provisions of the Trust Agreement.

The proceeds of any insurance (other than any rental interruption or workers’ compensation
insurance), including the proceeds of any self-insurance fund and of any condemnation award, received
on account of any damage, destruction, or taking of the Property or portion thereof shall as soon as
possible be deposited with the Trustee and be held by the Trustee in an Insurance Proceeds Fund (the
“Insurance Proceeds Fund”) to be then established for and, to the extent necessary, shall be applied to the
cost of repair or replacement of the Property or affected portion thereof upon receipt of a Written Request
of the City. Pending such application, such proceeds shall be invested by the Trustee solely at the written
direction of a City Representative, in Permitted Investments that mature not later than such times moneys
are expected to be needed to pay such costs of repair or replacement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a City Representative shall, within ninety (90) days of the
occurrence of the event of damage, destruction, or taking, notify the Trustee in writing of whether the
City, with the prior written consent or at the direction of the Bond Insurer, intends to replace or repair the
Property or the portions of the Property that were damaged or destroyed. If the City, with the prior
written consent or at the direction of the Bond Insurer, elects to replace or repair the Property or portions
thereof, the City shall deposit with the Trustee the full amount of any insurance deductible to be credited
to the Insurance Proceeds Fund.

If the damage, destruction, or taking was such that there resulted a substantial interference with
the City’s right to the use or possession of the Property or any portion thereof and an abatement of rental
payments will result from such damage or destruction pursuant to the Lease, then the City, with the prior
written consent or at the direction of the Bond Insurer, shall be required either to (i) apply sufficient funds
from the insurance proceeds, condemnation award, and other legally available funds to the replacement or
repair of the Property or portions thereof which have been damaged, destroyed, or taken so that such
Property or any portion thereof will be restored to its former condition and fair rental value, or (ii) transfer
to the Debt Service Fund and apply sufficient funds from the insurance proceeds, condemnation award,
and other legally available funds to the redemption, as set forth in the Trust Agreement, in full of all the
Outstanding Bonds or all of those Outstanding Bonds which would have been payable from that portion
of the Base Rental payments which are abated as a result of the damage, destruction, or taking, such that
the Base Rental payable on the remaining portions of the Property is sufficient to pay all principal and
interest due with respect to the Bonds to remain Outstanding after such redemption. Any amounts
received by the Trustee from insurance proceeds in excess of the amount needed to either repair or
replace a damaged, destroyed, or taken portion of the Property or to redeem Bonds shall be transferred to
the Reserve Fund to the extent necessary to make the amount on deposit therein equal to the Reserve
Requirement and thereafter any excess shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund.

Title Insurance. Proceeds of any policy of title insurance received by the Trustee in respect of
the Property shall be applied and disbursed by the Trustee as follows:

(a) If the Authority and the City, with the prior written consent or at the direction of the
Bond Insurer, (i) determine that the title defect giving rise to such proceeds has not materially affected the
use and possession of the Property and will not result in an abatement of Base Rental payable by the City
under the Lease, and (ii) has provided the Trustee with written evidence of such determination, such
proceeds shall be deposited into the Reserve Fund to the extent necessary to make the amount on deposit
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therein equal to the Reserve Requirement. Amounts not required to be so deposited, with the prior
written consent or at the direction of the Bond Insurer, shall be remitted to the City.

(b) If the Authority and the City, with the prior written consent or at the direction of the
Bond Insurer, determine that such title defect will result in an abatement of Base Rental payable by the
City under the Lease, then the Trustee shall immediately deposit such proceeds in the Debt Service Fund
and such proceeds and any other legally available funds, if any, shall be applied to the redemption of
Bonds in the manner specified in the Trust Agreement.

Application of Amounts After Default by City. All damages or other payments received by the
Trustee from the enforcement of any rights and powers of the Trustee under the Lease, after a default by
the City thereunder or under the Trust Agreement, shall be deposited into the Debt Service Fund and
applied in the manner specified in the Trust Agreement.

Investments Authorized. Money held by the Trustee in any fund or account under the Trust
Agreement shall be invested by the Trustee in Permitted Investments pending application as provided in
the Trust Agreement, solely at the written direction of a City Representative, shall be registered in the
name of the Trustee, as Trustee, and shall be held by the Trustee. The City shall direct the Trustee prior
to 12:00 p.m. Los Angeles time on the last Business Day before the date on which a Permitted Investment
matures or is redeemed as to the reinvestment of the proceeds thereof. In the absence of such direction,
the Trustee shall invest in Permitted Investments described in clause (6) of the definition thereof. Money
held in any fund or account under the Trust Agreement may be commingled for purposes of investment
only. The obligations in which moneys in the said funds are invested shall mature on or prior to the date
on which such moneys are estimated to be required to be paid out under the Trust Agreement. The
obligations in which moneys in the Reserve Fund are so invested shall be invested in obligations maturing
no later than five (5) years after the date of investment; provided no such investment shall mature later
than the final maturity date of the Bonds; provided further, if such investments may be redeemed at par so
as to be available on each Interest Payment Date, any amount of the Reserve Fund may be invested in
such redeemable investments of any maturity on or prior to the final maturity date of the Bonds.

All Investment Earnings with respect to amounts in the Rebate Fund shall be retained therein.
The Trustee shall transfer all Investment Earnings on deposit in all other funds and accounts established
under the Trust Agreement (except, to the extent required by the Trust Agreement, in the Reserve Fund)
to the Debt Service Fund. For purposes of determining the amount of deposit in any fund held under the
Trust Agreement, all Permitted Investments credited to such fund shall be valued at the cost thereof.

The Trustee may purchase or sell to itself or any affiliate, as principal or agent, investments
authorized by the Trust Agreement, provided that the Trustee has given prior notice to the City of its
intent to do so. The Trustee may act as principal or agent in the making or disposing of any investment.
The Trustee may commingle moneys in funds and accounts for purposes of investment.

For the purpose of determining the amount in any fund or account under the Trust Agreement all
Permitted Investments shall be valued at the end of each month calculated in the manner as provided in
the definition of Permitted Investments. The Trustee may sell at the best price obtainable, or present for
redemption, any Permitted Investment purchased by the Trustee whenever it shall be necessary in order to
provide money to meet any required payment, transfer, withdrawal, or disbursement from any fund or
account under the Trust Agreement, and the Trustee shall not be liable or responsible for any loss
resulting from such investment or sale, except any loss resulting from its own negligence or willful
misconduct.
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Reports. The Trustee shall furnish monthly to the Authority a report, which may be its
customary account statements, of all investments made by the Trustee and of all amounts on deposit in
each fund and account maintained under the Trust Agreement.

The Trustee. The Authority shall, from time to time, on demand, pay to the Trustee reasonable
compensation for its services and shall reimburse the Trustee for all its reasonable advances and
expenditures, including but not limited to advances to and fees and expenses of independent appraisers,
accountants, consultants, counsel, agents, and attorneys-at-law or other experts employed by it in the
exercise and performance of its powers and duties under the Trust Agreement. To the extent permitted by
law, compensation and reimbursement to the Trustee shall not be limited by any statutory provisions
which limit compensation to trustees of express trusts.

The City, with the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in
default in its payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, may at any time,
provided no event of default has occurred and is continuing, or the Owners of a majority in aggregate
principal amount of all Bonds then Outstanding, at any time, may by written request, for any reason,
remove the Trustee and any successor thereto, and shall thereupon appoint a successor or successors
thereto, but any such successor shall be a bank or trust company in good standing located in or
incorporated under the laws of the State, duly authorized to exercise trust powers, having (or be a member
of a bank holding company system with a bank holding company which has) a combined capital
(exclusive of borrowed capital) and surplus of at least $75,000,000 and shall be subject to supervision or
examination by federal or state banking authority, and shall otherwise be acceptable to the Bond Insurer;
provided that the Bond Insurer, in its sole discretion, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its
payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, may remove the Trustee. If such
bank or trust company publishes a report of condition at least annually, pursuant to law or to the
requirements of any supervising or examining authority above referred to, then, for the purposes of the
Trust Agreement, the combined capital and surplus of such bank or trust company shall be deemed to be
its combined capital and surplus set forth in its most recent report of condition so published. Any
removal of the Trustee shall become effective upon acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee.

The Trustee or any successor may at any time resign by giving not less than sixty (60) days prior
written notice to the Authority, the City, and the Bond Insurer and by giving mailed notice to the Owners
of its intention to resign and of the proposed date of resignation.

Upon receiving such notice of resignation, the City, with the prior written approval of the Bond
Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Financial
Guaranty Insurance Policy, shall promptly appoint a successor Trustee by an instrument in writing;
provided, however, that in the event the City fails to appoint a successor Trustee within sixty (60) days
following receipt of such written notice of resignation, the resigning Trustee may petition the appropriate
court having jurisdiction to appoint a successor. Any resignation of the Trustee shall become effective
upon acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee.

Any successor Trustee approved by the City, the Bond Insurer, or any court must satisfy the
qualifications set forth above.

Any company into which the Trustee may be merged or converted or with which it may be
consolidated or any company resulting from any merger, conversion, or consolidation to which it shall be
a party or any company to which the Trustee may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate
trust business (provided such company is eligible under the Trust Agreement), shall be the successor to
the Trustee without the execution or filing of any paper or further act, anything in the Trust Agreement to
the contrary notwithstanding.



The Trust Agreement further describes the duties of the Trustee. It also provides provisions
which protect the Trustee and limit the liability of the Trustee.

Paying Agents. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Trustee is appointed as paying agent for
the Bonds. The Trustee, upon written consent of the Authority, may appoint such other paying agents
with respect to the Bonds as it may deem advisable. Any paying agent appointed shall be a bank or trust
company, having a combined capital (exclusive of borrowed capital) and surplus of at least $75,000,000
and shall be subject to supervision by federal or state banking authorities.

Appointment of Co-Trustee or Agent. It is the purpose of the Trust Agreement that there shall
be no violation of any law of any jurisdiction (including particularly the law of the State) denying or
restricting the right of banking corporations or associations to transact business as Trustee in such
jurisdiction. It is recognized that in the case of litigation under the Trust Agreement, and in particular in
case of the enforcement of the rights of the Trustee on default, or in the case the Trustee deems that by
reason of any present or future law of any jurisdiction it may not exercise any of the powers, rights, or
remedies granted in the Trust Agreement to the Trustee or hold title to the properties, in trust, as granted
in the Trust Agreement, or take any other action which may be desirable or necessary in connection
therewith, it may be necessary that the Trustee appoint an additional individual or institution as a separate
co-trustee.

Amendments to Trust Agreement. (a) Except as described in clause (b) below, the Trust
Agreement may be amended only in writing by agreement among the City, the Authority, and the Trustee,
with the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its
payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, and the approval in writing by the
Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding. In addition, no such
modification or amendment shall (i) extend the maturity of or reduce the interest rate on any Bond or
otherwise alter or impair the obligation of the Authority to pay the principal, interest, or redemption
premium (if any) at the time and place and at the rate and in the currency provided therein of any Bond
without the express written consent of the Owner of such Bond, (ii) reduce the percentage of Bonds
required for the written consent to any such amendment or modification, or (iii) without its written
consent thereto, modify any of the rights or obligations of the Trustee.

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions described in clause (a) above, the Trust Agreement and
the rights and obligations provided thereby may also be modified or amended at any time without the
consent of any Owners upon the written agreement of the City, the Authority and the Trustee, with the
consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under
the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, but only (i) for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or omission
relating thereto, or of curing, correcting, or supplementing any defective provision contained in the Trust
Agreement, (2) in regard to questions arising under the Trust Agreement which the City, the Authority,
and the Trustee may deem necessary or desirable and not inconsistent with the Trust Agreement and
which shall not adversely affect the interests of the Owners of the Bonds then Outstanding, (3) to qualify
the Trust Agreement under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or corresponding provisions of
federal laws from time to time in effect, or (4) for any other reason, provided such modification or
amendment does not adversely affect the interests of the Owners of the Bonds then Outstanding; provided
that the City, the Authority, and the Trustee may rely in entering into any such amendment or
modification of the Trust Agreement upon the opinion of Independent Counsel stating that the
requirements of this sentence have been met with respect to such amendment or modification. No
amendment shall impair the right of any Owner to receive principal and interest in accordance with the
terms of such Owner’s Bond.
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(©) The Bond Insurer has reserved the right to charge the Authority or the City a fee for any
consent or amendment to the Trust Agreement while the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy is
outstanding, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Financial
Guaranty Insurance Policy.

Amendments to Lease or Property Lease. The Lease or the Property Lease may be amended in
writing by agreement between the Authority and the City, with the prior written consent of the Bond
Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Financial
Guaranty Insurance Policy, and the consent of the Trustee, but no such amendment shall become effective
as to the Owners unless and until approved in writing by the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal
amount of Bonds then Outstanding. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Lease or the Property Lease and
the rights and obligations provided thereby may also be modified or amended at any time with the consent
of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the
Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, but without the consent of any Owners, upon the written agreement
of the City and the Authority, but only (a) for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or omission relating
thereto, or of curing, correcting, or supplementing any defective provision contained in the Lease or the
Property Lease, (b) in regard to questions arising under the Lease or the Property Lease which the City
and the Authority may deem necessary or desirable and not inconsistent with the Lease or the Property
Lease, as applicable, and which shall not adversely affect the interests of the Owners of the Bonds then
Outstanding, (c) to effect any substitution of the Property or any portion thereof in accordance with the
Lease or the Property Lease, or (d) for any other reason, provided such modification or amendment does
not adversely affect the interests of the Owners of the Bonds then Outstanding; provided that the City and
the Authority may rely in entering into any such amendment or modification thereof, upon the opinion of
Independent Counsel stating that the requirements of this sentence have been met with respect to such
amendment or modification. No such amendment shall (i) reduce the percentage of Bonds required for
the written consent to any such amendment or modification, (ii) without its written consent thereto,
modify any of the rights or obligations of the Trustee, or (iii) impair the right of any Owner to receive
principal and interest in accordance with the terms of such Owner’s Bond.

Covenants. The Authority and the City have covenanted in the Trust Agreement as set forth
below:

Authority and City to Perform Pursuant to Lease. The Authority and the City covenant
and agree with the Owners to perform all obligations and duties imposed under the Lease and the
Property Lease.

Extension of Payment of Bonds. The Authority shall not directly or indirectly extend the
dates upon which the Base Rental payments are required to be paid or redeemed, or the time of payment
of interest with respect thereto. Nothing in the Trust Agreement shall be deemed to limit the right of the
Authority or the City to issue any securities for the purpose of providing funds for the redemption of the
Bonds and such issuance shall not be deemed to constitute an extension of the maturity of the Bonds.

Offices for Servicing Bonds. The Authority (itself or via one or more agents) shall at all
times maintain one or more offices or agencies in Los Angeles, California, where Bonds may be
presented for payment, and shall at all times maintain one or more agencies where Bonds may be
presented for registration of transfer or exchange, and where notices, demands, and other documents may
be served upon the Authority in respect of the Bonds. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Authority
appoints the Trustee as its agent in Los Angeles, California, for purposes of this provision.




Access to Books and Records. The Trustee shall, at all reasonable times and upon
reasonable notice, have access to those books and records of the Authority which may be reasonably
required by the Trustee to fulfill its duties and obligations under the Trust Agreement.

General. The Authority and the City shall do and perform or cause to be done and
performed all respective acts and things required to be done or performed by or on behalf of the Authority
or the City, respectively, under the provisions of the Trust Agreement.

The Authority and the City certify that upon the date of execution and delivery of any of
the Bonds, all things, conditions, and acts required by the Constitution and laws of the State and the Trust
Agreement to exist, to have happened, and to have been performed precedent to and in the execution and
the delivery of such Bonds do exist, have happened, and have been performed in due time, form, and
manner, as required by law.

Tax Matters. The Authority shall contest by court action or otherwise any assertion by
the United States of America or any department or agency thereof that the interest received by the Owners
is includable in gross income of such recipients under federal income tax laws. Notwithstanding any
other provision of the Trust Agreement, absent an opinion of Independent Counsel that the exclusion from
gross income of interest on the Bonds will not be adversely affected for federal income tax purposes, each
of the Authority and the City covenants to comply with all applicable requirements of the Code necessary
to preserve such exclusion from gross income and specifically covenants, without limiting the generality
of the foregoing, as follows:

(a) Private Activity. Neither the Authority nor the City shall take any action
or refrain from taking any action or make any use of the proceeds of the Bonds or of any other
moneys or property that would cause the Bonds to be “private activity bonds” within the meaning
of Section 141 of the Code.

(b) Arbitrage. Neither the Authority nor the City shall make any use of the
proceeds of the Bonds or of any other amounts or property, regardless of the source, or take any
action or refrain from taking any action that will cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within
the meaning of Section 148 of the Code.

(©) Federal Guaranty. Neither the Authority nor the City shall make any use
of the proceeds of the Bonds or take or omit to take any action that would cause the Bonds to be
“federally guaranteed” within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code.

(d) Information Reporting. The Authority and the City shall take or cause to
be taken all necessary action to comply with the informational reporting requirement of
Section 149(e) of the Code.

(e) Hedge Bonds. Neither the Authority nor the City shall make any use of
the proceeds of the Bonds or any other amounts or property, regardless of the source, or take any
action or refrain from taking any action that would cause the Bonds to be considered “hedge
bonds” within the meaning of Section 149(g) of the Code unless the Authority or the City, as
applicable, takes all necessary action to assure compliance with the requirements of Section 149(g)
of the Code to maintain the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal
income tax purposes.

® Miscellaneous. Neither the Authority nor the City shall take any action
or refrain from taking any action inconsistent with its expectations stated in the Tax Certificate
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executed by the Authority and the City in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and each
shall comply with the covenants and requirements stated therein and incorporated by reference in
the Trust Agreement.

(2) Taxable Bonds. The covenants set forth above shall not be applicable to,
and nothing contained therein shall be deemed to prevent the Authority or the City from issuing
bonds, the interest on which has been determined by the Authority or the City, as applicable, to be
subject to federal income taxation.

Performance. The Authority shall faithfully observe all covenants and other provisions
contained in the Trust Agreement, in each Bond issued and delivered under the Trust Agreement, and in
the Lease and the Property Lease. Except as provided in the Trust Agreement, and in the Lease, the
Authority shall not agree to any amendment to the Lease that would either lengthen the term thereof or
reduce the amount of Base Rental or Additional Rental payable thereunder, or change the time or times of
payment of such Base Rental or Additional Rental, or agree to any other amendment detrimental to the
rights of the Owners or the Bond Insurer.

Prosecution and Defense of Suits. The Authority shall promptly take such action as may
be necessary to cure any defect in the title to the Property or any part thereof, whether now existing or
hereafter occurring, and shall prosecute and defend all such suits, actions, and all other proceedings as
may be appropriate for such purpose.

Further Assurances. The Authority will make, execute, and deliver any and all such
further resolutions, instruments, and assurances as may be reasonably necessary or proper to carry out the
intention or to facilitate the performance of the Trust Agreement, and for the better assuring and
confirming to the Owners the rights and benefits provided in the Trust Agreement.

Street Access. So long as Bonds are Outstanding, the Authority will take or cause to be
taken all necessary action to assure adequate street access to and from all Components of the Property.

Continuing Disclosure. The Authority and the Trustee have covenanted and agreed that
they shall each comply with and carry out their respective obligations under the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Trust Agreement, failure of the Authority or the
Trustee to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Agreement will not be considered an event of default
thereunder; however, the Trustee may (and, at the request of any Participating Underwriter or the Owners
of at least twenty-five percent (25%) aggregate principal amount of Outstanding Bonds, shall) or any
Owner or Beneficial Owner may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including
seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the Authority or the Trustee, as the case
may be, to comply with its obligations under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement. For purposes of this
paragraph, “Beneficial Owner” means any person that (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or
consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds
through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for
federal income tax purposes.

Events of Default. The following shall be “events of default” under the Trust Agreement and the
terms “events of default” and “default” shall mean, whenever they are used in the Trust Agreement, any
one or more of the following events:

(a) An event of default shall have occurred under the Lease; provided, however, no effect

shall be given to payments made under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy in determining whether
an event of default exists under this provision.
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(b) Failure by the Authority to observe and perform any covenant, condition, or agreement
on its part to be observed or performed under the Trust Agreement or the Lease, other than such failure as
may constitute an event of default under clause (a) above, for a period of thirty (30) days after written
notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied has been given to the Authority by the
Trustee or the Bond Insurer or to the Authority and the Trustee by the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond
Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, or the
Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding, or if the
failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within such 30-day period, then the grace period shall not
extend for more than sixty (60) days without the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the
Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy.

In the event that an event of default has occurred and is continuing under the Trust Agreement,
the Trustee shall give notice of such default to the Owners. Such notice shall state that an event of default
has occurred and is continuing under the Trust Agreement and shall provide a brief description of such
default. The Trustee in its discretion may withhold notice if it deems it in the best interests of the Owners.
The notice shall be given by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the Owners within thirty (30) days of
such occurrence of default.

Remedies on Default. (a) Upon the occurrence and continuance of any event of default specified
under the Trust Agreement, the Trustee may, upon the written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the
Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy,
and shall, at the direction of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment
obligations under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, proceed to exercise the remedies set forth in
the Lease or available to the Trustee under the Trust Agreement. Upon the occurrence and continuance of
an event of default under the Trust Agreement which would require the Bond Insurer to make payments
under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, the Bond Insurer and its designated agent shall be
provided with access to inspect and copy the Bond Register held by the Trustee.

(b) In addition to the remedies set forth in the Trust Agreement and upon the occurrence and
continuance of any event of default specified in the Trust Agreement, the Trustee may, upon the written
consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under
the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, and shall, at the direction of the Bond Insurer, so long as the
Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy,
proceed to protect and enforce the rights vested in Owners by the Trust Agreement by appropriate judicial
proceedings or proceedings as the Trustee, with the consent or at the direction of the Bond Insurer, so
long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty
Insurance Policy, deems most effectual. The provisions of the Trust Agreement and all resolutions or
orders in the proceedings for the issuance of the Bonds shall constitute a contract with the Owners of the
Bonds, and such contract, with the consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in
default in its payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, may be enforced by any
Owner by mandamus, injunction, or other applicable legal action, suit, proceeding, or other remedy.

(©) Upon an event of default and prior to the curing thereof, the Trustee shall exercise the
rights and remedies vested in it by the Trust Agreement with the same degree of care and skill as a
prudent person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his own affairs.

(d) Owner’s directions or institution of remedies upon default under the Trust Agreement
shall be subject to the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in
default in its payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy. The Bond Insurer, so
long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty
Insurance Policy, acting alone, shall have the right to direct all remedies upon an event of default. Further,
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no waiver of an event of default shall be granted without obtaining the prior written consent of the Bond
Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Financial
Guaranty Insurance Policy.

Application of Moneys. Any moneys received by the Trustee relating to an event of default
under the Trust Agreement, together with any moneys which upon the occurrence of an event of default
under the Trust Agreement are held by the Trustee in any of the funds under the Trust Agreement (other
than the Rebate Fund and other than moneys held for Bonds not presented for payment) shall, after
payment of reasonable fees and expenses of the Trustee, and the reasonable fees and expenses of its
counsel, be applied to the payment of the whole amount then owing and unpaid on the Outstanding Bonds
for principal, premium, if any, and interest, and in case such moneys shall be insufficient to pay in full the
whole amount so owing and unpaid on the Bonds, to the payment of the principal, premium, if any, and
interest then due and unpaid upon the Outstanding Bonds without preference or priority of any of
principal, premium, or interest over the others or of any installment of interest, or of any Outstanding
Bond over any other Outstanding Bond, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for principal,
premium, and interest, to the persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or preference except as
to any difference in the respective amounts of interest specified in the Outstanding Bonds.

Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the Trust Agreement as describe above, such
moneys shall be applied at such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee, with the consent or at the
direction of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations
under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, shall determine, having due regard to the amount of such
moneys available for application and the likelihood of additional moneys becoming available for such
application in the future. The Trustee shall give, by mailing by first class mail as it may deem appropriate,
such notice of the deposit with it of any such moneys.

Defeasance. If the Authority shall pay or cause to be paid or there shall otherwise be paid to the
Owners of any Outstanding Bonds the interest thereon and the principal thereof and the redemption
premiums, if any, thereon at the times and in the manner stipulated in the Trust Agreement and in the
Bonds, then the Owners of such Bonds shall cease to be entitled to the pledge of the Pledged Assets as
provided in the Trust Agreement, and all agreements, covenants, and other obligations of the Authority to
the Owners of such Bonds under the Trust Agreement shall thereupon cease, terminate, and become void
and be discharged and satisfied. In such event, the Trustee shall execute and deliver to the Authority all
such instruments as may be necessary or desirable to evidence such discharge and satisfaction, and the
Trustee shall pay over or deliver to the Authority all money or securities held by it pursuant to the Trust
Agreement, which are not required for the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption
premiums, if any, on such Bonds.

Subject to the provisions of the above paragraph, when any of the Bonds shall have been paid and
if, at the time of such payment, the Authority shall have kept, performed, and observed all the covenants
and promises in such Bonds and in the Trust Agreement required or contemplated to be kept, performed,
and observed by the Authority or on its part on or prior to that time, then the Trust Agreement shall be
considered to have been discharged in respect of such Bonds and such Bonds shall cease to be entitled to
the lien of the Trust Agreement and such lien and all covenants, agreements, and other obligations of the
Authority under the Trust Agreement shall cease, terminate, become void, and be completely discharged
as to such Bonds.

Notwithstanding the satisfaction and discharge of the Trust Agreement or the discharge of the
Trust Agreement in respect of any Bonds, those provisions of the Trust Agreement relating to the
maturity of the Bonds, interest payments and dates thereof, exchange and transfer of Bonds, replacement
of mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Bonds, the safekeeping and cancellation of Bonds, nonpresentment
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of Bonds, and the duties of the Trustee in connection with all of the foregoing, remain in effect and shall
be binding upon the Trustee and the Owners of the Bonds and the Trustee shall continue to be obligated
to hold in trust any moneys or investments then held by the Trustee for the payment of the principal of,
redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, to pay to the Owners of Bonds the funds so held
by the Trustee as and when such payment becomes due. Notwithstanding the satisfaction and discharge
of the Trust Agreement or the discharge of the Trust Agreement in respect of any Bonds, those provisions
of the Trust Agreement relating to the compensation of the Trustee shall remain in effect and shall be
binding upon the Trustee and the Authority.

Notwithstanding anything in the Trust Agreement to the contrary, in the event that the principal
or interest due with respect to the Bonds shall be paid by the Bond Insurer pursuant to the Financial
Guaranty Insurance Policy, the Bonds shall remain Outstanding for all purposes, not be defeased or
otherwise satisfied, and not be considered paid by the Authority, and the assignment and pledge of the
Pledged Assets and all covenants, agreements, and other obligations of the Authority to the Owners shall
continue to exist and shall run to the benefit of the Bond Insurer, and the Bond Insurer shall be subrogated
to the rights of such Owners.

Any Outstanding Bonds shall prior to the maturity date or redemption date thereof be deemed to
have been paid within the meaning of and with the effect expressed in this paragraph if (1) in case any of
such Bonds are to be redeemed on any date prior to their maturity date, the Authority shall have given to
the Trustee in form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to mail, on a date in accordance with the
provisions of the Trust Agreement, a Redemption Notice for such Bonds on said redemption date, such
Redemption Notice to be given in accordance with the Trust Agreement, (2) there shall have been
deposited with the Trustee either (A) money in an amount which shall be sufficient, or (B) Government
Obligations or defeased municipal bonds rated AAA by S&P or Aaa by Moody’s, the payment of which
defeased municipal bonds is secured solely by Government Obligations (or any combination of the
foregoing), the interest on and principal of which when paid will provide money which, together with the
money, if any, deposited with the Trustee at the same time, shall, as verified by an independent certified
public accountant, be sufficient, to pay when due the interest to become due on such Bonds on and prior
to the maturity date or redemption date thereof, as the case may be, and the principal of and redemption
premiums, if any, on such Bonds, (3) in the event such Bonds are not by their terms subject to redemption
within the next succeeding sixty (60) days, the Authority shall have given the Trustee in form satisfactory
to it irrevocable instructions to mail as soon as practicable, a notice to the Owners of such Bonds and the
Bond Insurer that the deposit required by clause (2) above has been made with the Trustee and that such
Bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with this provision and stating the maturity date or
redemption date upon which money is to be available for the payment of the principal of and redemption
premiums, if any, on such Bonds, and (4) in the case of Bonds subject to the book-entry system, the
Trustee shall give notice to the Depository of the redemption of all or part of such Bonds on the date
proceeds or other funds are deposited in escrow with respect to Bonds. Nothing in this paragraph is
intended to preclude redemptions pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

After the payment of all the interest of and principal on all Outstanding Bonds as provided above,
the Trustee shall execute and deliver to the City and the Authority all such instruments as may be
necessary or desirable to evidence the discharge and satisfaction of the Trust Agreement, and the Trustee
shall pay over or deliver to the Authority all moneys or securities held by it pursuant to the Trust
Agreement which are not required for the payment of the interest and principal represented by such Bonds.
Notwithstanding the discharge and satisfaction of the Trust Agreement, Owners of Bonds shall thereafter
be entitled to payments due under the Bonds pursuant to the Lease, but only from amounts deposited
pursuant to the Trust Agreement and from no other source.
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Notwithstanding anything in the Trust Agreement to the contrary, in the event that the principal
and/or interest due with respect to the Bonds shall be paid by the Bond Insurer pursuant to the Financial
Guaranty Insurance Policy, the Bonds shall remain Outstanding for all purposes, not be defeased or
otherwise satisfied, and not be considered paid by the Authority, and the assignment and pledge of the
Pledged Assets and all covenants, agreements, and other obligations of the Authority to the Owners shall
continue to exist and shall run to the benefit of the Bond Insurer, and the Bond Insurer shall be subrogated
to the rights of such Owners.

Provisions Relating To The Bond Insurer and the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy.
Payment Procedure Pursuant to the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy. As long as the

Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy shall be in full force and effect, the Authority and the Trustee shall
comply with the following provisions:

(a) At least one (1) day prior to each Interest Payment Date, the Trustee shall determine
whether there will be sufficient funds in the funds and accounts established under the Trust Agreement to
pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds on such Interest Payment Date. If the Trustee determines
that there will be insufficient funds in such funds or accounts, the Trustee shall so notify the Bond Insurer.
Such notice shall specify the amount of the anticipated deficiency, the Bonds to which such deficiency is
applicable, and whether such Bonds will be deficient as to principal or interest, or both. If the Trustee has
not so notified the Bond Insurer at least one (1) day prior to an Interest Payment Date, the Bond Insurer
will make payments of principal or interest due on the Bonds on or before the first (1st) day next
following the date on which Bond Insurer shall have received notice of nonpayment from the Trustee.

(b) The Trustee shall, after giving notice to the Bond Insurer as provided in (a) above, make
available to the Bond Insurer and, at the Bond Insurer’s direction, to The Bank of New York, in New
York, New York, as insurance trustee for the Bond Insurer, or any successor insurance trustee (the
“Insurance Trustee”), the Bond Register maintained by the Trustee and all records relating to the funds
and accounts maintained under the Trust Agreement.

(©) The Trustee shall provide the Bond Insurer and the Insurance Trustee with a list of
Owners of Bonds entitled to receive principal or interest payments from the Bond Insurer under the terms
of the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, and shall make arrangements with the Insurance Trustee (i) to
mail checks or drafts to the Owners of Bonds entitled to receive full or partial interest payments from the
Bond Insurer and (ii) to pay principal upon Bonds surrendered to the Insurance Trustee by the Owners of
Bonds entitled to receive full or partial principal payments from the Bond Insurer.

(d) The Trustee shall, at the time it provides notice to the Bond Insurer pursuant to (a) above,
notify the Owners of Bonds entitled to receive the payment of principal thereof or interest thereon from
the Bond Insurer (i) as to the fact of such entitlement, (ii) that the Bond Insurer will remit to them all or a
part of the interest payments next coming due upon proof of Owner entitlement to interest payments and
delivery to the Insurance Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Insurance Trustee, of an appropriate
assignment of the Owner’s right to payment, (iii) that should they be entitled to receive full payment of
principal from the Bond Insurer, they must surrender their Bonds (along with an appropriate instrument of
assignment in form satisfactory to the Insurance Trustee to permit ownership of such Bonds to be
registered in the name of the Bond Insurer) for payment to the Insurance Trustee, and not the Trustee, and
(iv) that should they be entitled to receive partial payment of principal from the Bond Insurer, they must
surrender their Bonds for payment thereon first to the Trustee, who shall note on such Bonds the portion
of the principal paid by the Trustee and then, along with an appropriate instrument of assignment in form
satisfactory to the Insurance Trustee, to the Insurance Trustee, which will then pay the unpaid portion of
principal.
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(e) In the event that the Trustee has notice that any payment of principal of or interest on a
Bond which has become Due for Payment (as such term is defined in the Financial Guaranty Insurance
Policy) and which is made to an Owner by or on behalf of the Authority has been deemed a preferential
transfer and theretofore recovered from its Owner pursuant to the United States Bankruptcy Code by a
trustee in bankruptcy in accordance with the final, nonappealable order of a court having competent
jurisdiction, the Trustee shall, at the time the Bond Insurer is notified pursuant to (a) above, notify all
Owners that in the event that any Owner’s payment is so recovered, such Owner will be entitled to
payment from the Bond Insurer to the extent of such recovery if sufficient funds are not otherwise
available, and the Trustee shall furnish to the Bond Insurer its records evidencing the payments of
principal of and interest on the Bonds which have been made by the Trustee and subsequently recovered
from Owners and the dates on which such payments were made.

(H) In addition to those rights granted the Bond Insurer under the Trust Agreement, the Bond
Insurer shall, to the extent it makes payment of principal of or interest on Bonds, become subrogated to
the rights of the recipients of such payments in accordance with the terms of the Financial Guaranty
Insurance Policy, and to evidence such subrogation (i) in the case of subrogation as to claims for past due
interest, the Trustee shall note the Bond Insurer’s rights as subrogee on the Bond Register maintained by
the Trustee upon receipt from the Bond Insurer of proof of the payment of interest thereon to the Owners
of the Bonds, and (ii) in the case of subrogation as to claims for past due principal, the Trustee shall note
the Bond Insurer’s rights as subrogee on the Bond Register maintained by the Trustee upon surrender of
the Bonds by the Owners thereof together with proof of the payment of principal thereof.

Bond Insurer As Third Party Beneficiary. To the extent that the Trust Agreement confers upon or
gives or grants to the Bond Insurer any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of the Trust Agreement,
the Bond Insurer is explicitly recognized as being a third-party beneficiary under the Trust Agreement
and may enforce any such right remedy or claim conferred, given, or granted thereunder.

Consent of Bond Insurer in the Event of Insolvency. Any reorganization or liquidation plan with
respect to the Authority or the City must be acceptable to the Bond Insurer. In the event of any
reorganization or liquidation, the Bond Insurer shall have the right to vote on behalf of all Owners who
hold the Bond Insurer-insured Bonds absent a default by the Bond Insurer under the Financial Guaranty
Insurance Policy insuring such Bonds.

Notices/Information to be Given to Bond Insurer.

(a) While the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy is in effect, the Authority, the City, or the
Trustee, as appropriate, shall furnish to the Bond Insurer, to the attention of the Surveillance Department,
at the City’s expense, the following:

(1) upon request, a copy of any financial statement, audit, and/or annual report of the
City;
(i1) a copy of any notice to be given to the Owners of the Bonds, including, without

limitation, notice of any redemption of or defeasance of Bonds, and any
certificate rendered pursuant to the Trust Agreement relating to the security for
the Bonds;

(iii) copies of any annual reports or notices furnished pursuant to the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement; and

(iv) such additional information the Bond Insurer may reasonably request.
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(b) While the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy is in effect, the Authority, the City, or the
Trustee, as appropriate, shall furnish to the Bond Insurer, to the attention of the General Counsel Office,
at the City’s expense, the following:

(1) The Trustee, the Authority, or the City, as appropriate, shall notify the Bond
Insurer of any failure of the Authority or the City to provide relevant notices,
certificates, etc.; and

(i1) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Trust Agreement, the Trustee, the
Authority, or the City, as appropriate, shall immediately notify the Bond Insurer
if at any time there are insufficient moneys to make any payments of principal
and/or interest as required and immediately upon the occurrence of any event of
default thereunder.

(©) The City shall permit the Bond Insurer to discuss the affairs, finances, and accounts of
the City or any information the Bond Insurer may reasonably request regarding the security for the Bonds
with appropriate officers of the City. The Trustee, the Authority, or the City, as appropriate, shall permit
the Bond Insurer to have access to the Property have access to and to make copies of all books and
records relating to the Bonds at any reasonable time.

(d) The Bond Insurer shall have the right to direct an accounting at the City’s expense, and
the City’s failure to comply with such direction within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of
the direction from the Bond Insurer shall be deemed a default under the Trust Agreement; provided,
however, that if compliance cannot occur within such period, then such period will be extended so long as
compliance is begun within such period and diligently pursued, but only if such extension would not
materially adversely affect the interests of any Owner of the Bonds.

LEASE

Lease Term; Transfer of Title To City; Termination of Prior Leases. Pursuant to the Lease,
the Authority subleases all Components of the Property to the City, and the City subleases all
Components of the Property from the Authority, and the City agrees to pay the Base Rental and the
Additional Rental as provided in the Lease for the right to the use and possession of the Property, all on
the terms and conditions set forth in the Lease.

The term of the Lease shall begin on the Closing Date and end on the earliest of (a) June 1, 2016;
provided that in the event the principal of and interest on the Bonds and all other amounts payable under
the Lease and under the Trust Agreement shall not be fully paid, or if the Base Rental or Additional
Rental due under the Lease shall have been abated at any time as permitted by the terms of the Lease,
then the term of the Lease shall be extended, except that the term shall in no event be extended beyond
June 1, 2021, or (b) at such date as the Bonds shall have been paid or provision for their payment shall
have been made in accordance with the Trust Agreement, or (c) the date of termination of the Lease due
to condemnation in accordance with the terms of the Lease, or (d) the date on which (i) the City has
exercised its right to purchase all the Components of the Property pursuant to the Lease and (ii) no Bonds
are Outstanding under the Trust Agreement.

Pursuant to the exercise of the option to purchase the Property, or a Component thereof pursuant
to the Lease, and upon defeasance of the allocable portion of the Bonds related to such Component or
Components of the Property in accordance with the Trust Agreement, title to the Component or
Components of the Property which is purchased, and any improvements thereon or additions thereto, shall
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be transferred directly to the City or, at the option of the City, to any assignee or nominee of the City, in
accordance with the provisions of the Lease, free and clear of any interest of the Authority.

Effective on the Closing Date and upon the deposit with the Escrow Agent of an amount
sufficient to defease the 1993 Bonds, the 1993 Lease and the 1993 Property Lease shall terminate. On the
Closing Date, the City covenants that it shall be in possession of the Property.

Rental Payments. Pursuant to the Lease, the City agrees, subject to the terms of the Lease, to
pay to the Authority the Base Rental and Additional Rental in an amount no greater than the aggregate
fair rental value of all the Components of the Property in each Lease Year. For purposes of the Lease, the
term “fair rental value” shall refer to the maximum amount of rental payments payable with respect to
each Component which may be supported by the fair market value of such Component, as estimated by
the City, initially, and thereafter as provided in the Lease. In satisfaction of its obligations under the
Lease, the City shall pay the Base Rental and Additional Rental in the amounts, at the times, and in the
manner set forth in the Lease, such amounts constituting in the aggregate the rent payable under the Lease.

Base Rental. The City agrees to pay, from legally available funds, aggregate Base Rental
in the amounts set forth in the Lease, a portion of which Base Rental constitutes principal payable with
respect to the Bonds and a portion of which constitutes interest payable with respect to the Bonds, as
determined in accordance with the terms of the Lease. The Base Rental payable by the City shall be due
five (5) Business Days prior to each Interest Payment Date during the Lease Term. Base Rental payable
immediately prior to June 1 in any year shall be for the period December 1 of such year to May 31 of such
year, and Base Rental payable immediately prior to December 1 in any year shall be for the period June 1
of such year to November 30 of such year.

To secure the performance of its obligation to pay Base Rental, the City shall deposit the
Base Rental with the Trustee on or before the date on which such Base Rental is due, for application by
the Trustee in accordance with the terms of the Trust Agreement. In the event any such date of deposit is
not a Business Day, such deposit shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day. In no event shall
the amount of Base Rental payable on any date exceed the aggregate amount of principal and interest
required to be paid or prepaid on such date with respect to the Outstanding Bonds, according to their tenor.

The obligation of the City to pay Base Rental shall commence on the Closing Date.

Additional Rental. In addition to the Base Rental set forth in the Lease, the City agrees to
pay as Additional Rental all of the following:

(1) All taxes and assessments of any nature whatsoever, including but not limited to
excise taxes, ad valorem taxes, ad valorem and specific lien special assessments, and gross
receipts taxes, if any, levied upon the Property or upon any interest of the Authority, the Trustee,
or the Owners therein or in the Lease;

(i1) On or before each Interest Payment Date, the City shall deposit or cause to be
deposited, from its legally available funds, such amounts as are necessary to increase the amount
on deposit in the Reserve Fund to an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement. Furthermore, in
the event that the Trustee notifies the Authority or the City that the amount on deposit in the
Reserve Fund is less than the Reserve Requirement, the City shall deposit or cause to be
deposited, from its legally available funds, in the Reserve Fund such amounts as are necessary to
increase the amount on deposit therein to the Reserve Requirement.
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(i)  Insurance premiums, if any, on all insurance required under the provisions of the
Lease;

(iv) Any rebate amounts required to be paid to the United States Treasury;

v) All fees, costs, and expenses (not otherwise paid or provided for out of the
proceeds of the sale of the Bonds) of the Trustee and any paying agent in connection with the
Trust Agreement;

(vi) All fees, costs, expenses, and other amounts due to the Bond Insurer under the
Lease and under the Trust Agreement;

(vii)  All amounts required to be paid by the Authority, other than from Pledged Assets,
under the Trust Agreement; and

(viii))  Any other fees, costs, or expenses incurred by the Authority, the Bond Insurer, or
the Trustee in connection with the execution, performance, or enforcement of the Lease or any
assignment thereof or of the Trust Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated by the
Lease or the Trust Agreement or related to the Property.

Amounts constituting Additional Rental payable under the Lease shall be paid by the City
directly to the person or persons to whom such amounts shall be payable. The City shall pay all such
amounts when due or, in any other case, within thirty (30) days after notice in writing from the Trustee,
the Bond Insurer, or the Authority to the City stating the amount of Additional Rental then due and
payable and the purpose thereof.

Consideration. The payments of Base Rental and Additional Rental under the Lease for each
Fiscal Year or portion thereof during the Lease Team shall constitute the total rental for such Fiscal Year
or portion thereof and shall be paid by the City for and in consideration of the right to the use and
possession of the Property by the City for and during such Fiscal Year or portion thereof; provided that,
the Base Rental and Additional Rental payments shall be subject to abatement as provided in the Lease
during any period in which by reason of damage, destruction, or taking by eminent domain or
condemnation of, or defects in the title with respect to, the Property or any portion thereof, there is
substantial interference with the use and possession by the City of all or a portion of the Components
comprising the Property. The parties to the Lease have agreed and determined that such total rental is not
in excess of the total fair rental value of the Property. In making such determination, consideration has
been given to the uses and purposes served by the Property and the benefits therefrom that will accrue to
the parties by reason of the Lease and to the general public by reason of the City’s right to the use of the
Property.

Budget. Pursuant to the Lease, the City covenants to take such action as may be necessary to
include all Base Rental and Additional Rental due under the Lease as a separate line item in its annual
budget and to make the necessary annual appropriations for all such Base Rental and Additional Rental,
subject to the provisions regarding rental abatement in the Lease. The covenants on the part of the City
contained in the Lease shall be deemed to be and shall be construed to be ministerial duties imposed by
law and it shall be the ministerial duty of each and every public official of the City to take such action and
do such things as are required by law in the performance of such official duty of such officials to enable
the City to carry out and perform the covenants and agreements on the part of the City contained in the
Lease. The obligation of the City to make Base Rental or Additional Rental payments does not constitute
an obligation of the City for which the City is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation or for
which the City has levied or pledged any form of taxation. Neither the Bonds nor the obligation of the
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City to make Base Rental or Additional Rental payments constitutes an indebtedness of the City, the State,
or any of its political subdivisions within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or
restriction.

Payment; Credit. Amounts necessary to pay Base Rental shall be deposited by the City on the
dates set forth in the Lease in lawful money of the United States of America, at the Principal Office of the
Trustee, or at such other place or places as may be established in accordance with the Trust Agreement.
Any amount necessary to pay any Base Rental or portion thereof which is not so deposited shall remain
due and payable until received by the Trustee and shall continue to bear interest at the rate or rates
applicable thereto from the date when the same is due under the Lease until the same shall be paid.
Notwithstanding any dispute between the City and the Authority under the Lease, the City shall make all
Base Rental and Additional Rental payments when due without deduction or offset of any kind and shall
not withhold any rental payments pending the final resolution of such dispute or for any other reason
whatsoever. The City’s obligation to make Base Rental and Additional Rental payments in the amount
and on the terms and conditions specified under the Lease shall be absolute and unconditional without any
right of set-off or counterclaim, and without abatement, subject only to the provisions of the provisions
regarding rental abatement in the Lease. Amounts required to be deposited with the Trustee as described
in this paragraph on any date shall be reduced to the extent of amounts on deposit on such date in the
Debt Service Fund held by the Trustee under the Trust Agreement and which are available to pay Base
Rental on the applicable Interest Payment Date, except for amounts being held therein for the payment of
Bonds that have matured or been called but have not been surrendered for payment.

Rental Abatement. Except to the extent of amounts available to the City for payments under the
Lease (including amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund and the proceeds of condemnation awards,
casualty, title, or rental interruption insurance), during any period in which, by reason of material damage
or destruction, there is substantial interference with the right to the use and occupancy by the City of any
Component of the Property, Base Rental and Additional Rental payments due under the Lease shall be
abated proportionately, and the City waives the benefits of Civil Code Sections 1932(1), 1932(2), and
1933(4) and any and all other rights to terminate the Lease by virtue of any such interference and the
Lease shall continue in full force and effect. The amount of such abatement shall be agreed upon by the
City and the Trustee, subject to the provisions regarding consideration in the Lease. The City and the
Authority shall calculate such abatement and shall provide the Trustee and the Bond Insurer with a
certificate setting forth such calculation and the basis therefor. Such abatement shall continue for the
period commencing with the date of such damage or destruction and ending with the substantial
completion of the work of repair or replacement of the Component of the Property so damaged or
destroyed; and the term of the Lease shall be extended as provided therein, except that the term shall in no
event be extended beyond the maximum term provided in the Lease.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that moneys are available for the payment of Base
Rental or Additional Rental in any of the funds and accounts established under the Trust Agreement, such
rental payments shall not be abated as provided above but, rather, shall be payable by the City as a special
obligation payable solely from said funds and account.

If an event of abatement shall occur during the term of the Lease, upon cessation of the event of
abatement, the Property, or any portion thereof, subject to abatement shall be appraised to determine its
current fair rental value. If such value has increased since the Closing Date, Base Rental and Additional
Rental payments shall be increased for the remaining term to reflect such increase so that the abated Base
Rental and Additional Rental payments are fully paid.

Affirmative Covenants of the Authority and the City. The Authority and the City are entering
into the Lease in consideration of, among other things, the following covenants:
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Maintenance and Ordinary Repairs. The City shall, at its own expense, during the Lease
Term, maintain the Property, or cause the same to be maintained, in good order, condition, and repair and
shall repair or replace any portion of the Property resulting from ordinary wear and tear and want of care
on the part of the City or any sublessee thereof. The City shall provide or cause to be provided all
security service, custodial service, janitorial service, and other services necessary for the proper upkeep
and maintenance of the Property. It is understood and agreed that in consideration of the payment by the
City of the rental payments provided for in the Lease, the City is entitled to the right of possession of the
Property and the Authority shall have no obligation to incur any expense of any kind or character in
connection with the management, operation, or maintenance of the Property during the Lease Term. The
Authority shall not be required at any time to make any improvements, alterations, changes, additions,
repairs, or replacements of any nature whatsoever in or to the Property. Pursuant to the Lease, the City
expressly waives the right to make repairs or to perform maintenance of the Property at the expense of the
Authority and (to the extent permitted by law) waives the benefit of Sections 1932, 1941, and 1942 of the
California Civil Code relating thereto. The City shall keep the Property free and clear of all liens, charges,
and encumbrances other than Permitted Encumbrances and those encumbrances existing on or prior to the
Closing Date or on or prior to the date any property is substituted for any of the Property pursuant to the
Lease and covered by the exceptions and exclusions set forth in the title policies delivered pursuant to the
Lease, and any liens of mechanics, materialmen, suppliers, vendors, or other persons or entities for work
or services performed or materials furnished in connection with the Property which are not due and
payable or the amount, validity, or application of which is being contested in accordance with the Lease
as expressly approved by the City, the Bond Insurer, and the Authority prior to the Closing Date, subject
only to the provisions of the Lease regarding the payments of taxes and other governmental charges.

Taxes, Other Governmental Charges and Utility Charges. The Authority and the City
contemplate that the Property will be used for a governmental or proprietary purpose of the City and,
therefore, that the Property will be exempt from all taxes presently assessed and levied with respect to the
Property. Nevertheless, pursuant to the Lease, the City agrees to pay during the Lease Term, as the same
respectively become due, all taxes (except for income or franchise taxes of the Authority), utility charges,
and governmental charges of any kind whatsoever that may at any time be lawfully assessed or levied
against or with respect to the Property; provided, however, that, with respect to any governmental charges
that may lawfully be made in installments over a period of years, the City shall be obliged to pay only
such installments as are accrued during such time as the Lease is in effect; and, provided further, that the
City may contest in good faith the validity or application of any tax, utility charge, or governmental
charge in any reasonable manner which does not adversely affect the right, title, and interest of the
Authority in and to any portion of the Property or its rights or interests under the Lease or subject any
portion of the Property to loss or forfeiture. Any such taxes or charges shall constitute Additional Rental
under the Lease and shall be payable directly to the entity assessing such taxes or charges.

Insurance. The City shall secure and maintain or cause to be secured and maintained at
all times with insurers of recognized responsibility or through a program of self-insurance (which shall be
deemed for these purposes to include risk sharing pools) to the extent specifically permitted in the Lease,
all insurance coverage on the Property required by the Lease.

Such insurance or self-insurance shall consist of:

(1 A policy or policies of insurance (excluding earthquake and flood
insurance) against loss or damage to the Property known as “all risk.” Such insurance shall be
provided by an insurer rated no less than “A” by A. M. Best or as otherwise approved by the
Bond Insurer and shall be maintained at all times in an amount not less than the greater of the full
replacement value of the Property or the aggregate principal amount of Bonds at such time
Outstanding;
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2) General liability coverage against claims for damages including death,
personal injury, bodily injury, or property damage arising from operations involving the Property.
Such insurance shall afford protection with a combined single limit of not less than $2,000,000
per occurrence with respect to bodily injury, death, or property damage liability, or such greater
amount as may from time to time be recommended by the City’s risk management officer or an
independent insurance consultant retained by the City for that purpose; provided, however, that
the City’s obligations under this clause (2) may be satisfied by self-insurance;

3) Workers’ compensation insurance issued by a responsible carrier
authorized under the laws of the State of California to insure employers against liability for
compensation under the Labor Code of the State of California, or any act hereafter enacted as an
amendment or supplement thereto or in lieu thereof, such workers’ compensation insurance to
cover all persons employed by the City in connection with the Property and to cover liability for
compensation under any such act; provided, however, that the City’s obligations under this
clause (3) may be satisfied by self-insurance;

4) Rental interruption insurance to cover loss, total or partial, of the use of
any Component of the Property as a result of any of the hazards covered by the insurance
required pursuant to clause (1) above, covering a period of twenty-four (24) months, in an amount
equal to the product obtained by multiplying an amount equal to the then applicable Reserve
Requirement by 2.0.

®)] A CLTA policy or policies of title insurance for the Property in an
amount not less than the initial aggregate principal amount of the Bonds. Such policy or policies
of title insurance shall show fee simple title to the Property in the name of the City and a
leasehold estate in the name of the Authority, subject to Permitted Encumbrances as will not, in
the opinion of the Authority and the Bond Insurer, materially adversely affect the use and
possession of the Property and will not result in the abatement of Base Rental payable by the City
under the Lease.

All policies or certificates issued by the respective insurers for insurance, with the
exception of workers’ compensation insurance, shall provide that such policies or certificates shall not be
cancelled or materially changed without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Trustee. The
City shall deliver to the Trustee and the Bond Insurer on the Closing Date and on or prior to July 1 of
each year thereafter a certificate signed by a duly authorized City Representative stating whether the City
is in compliance with the requirements of the Lease and, in the event it is not in compliance, specifying
the nature of the noncompliance, and what action the City is taking to remedy such noncompliance. The
City shall further provide the Bond Insurer with copies of such insurance policies upon request.

All policies or certificates of insurance held by the City provided for in the Lease shall
name the City as a named insured, and the policies and certificates described in clauses (1) and (4) above
shall name (in addition to the City) the Authority and the Trustee as additional insureds. All proceeds of
insurance maintained under clauses (1), (4), and (5) above shall be deposited with the Trustee for
application pursuant to the Trust Agreement. All proceeds of insurance maintained under clauses (2) and
(3) shall be deposited with the City. None of the City, the Authority, or the Trustee shall settle claims
under any of the insurance policies required under the Lease without the consent of the Bond Insurer, so
long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty
Insurance Policy.

Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, the City shall not be required to maintain
or cause to be maintained more insurance than is specifically referred to above or any policies of
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insurance other than standard policies of insurance with standard deductibles offered by reputable insurers
on the open market.

All permitted self-insurance shall be biannually reviewed by the Finance and
Management Services Director, who shall provide the Trustee a report as to the sufficiency thereof.

Liens. The City shall promptly pay or cause to be paid all sums of money that may
become due for any labor, services, materials, supplies, or equipment alleged to have been furnished or to
be furnished to, for, in, upon, or about the Property and which may be secured by any mechanic’s,
materialman’s, or other lien against the Property, or the interest of the Authority therein, and shall cause
each such lien to be fully discharged and released; provided, however, that the City or the Authority, in
good faith, (i) may contest any such claim or lien without payment thereof so long as such non-payment
and contest stays execution or enforcement of the lien, but if such lien is reduced to final judgment and
such judgment or such process as may be issued for the enforcement thereof is not stayed, or if stayed and
the stay thereafter expires, then and in any such event the City shall forthwith pay and discharge such
judgment or lien, or (ii) may delay payment without contest so long as and to the extent that such delay
will not result in the imposition of any penalty or forfeiture.

Laws and Ordinances. The City shall observe and comply with all rules, regulations, and
laws applicable to the City with respect to the Property and the operation thereof. The cost, if any, of
such observance and compliance shall be borne by the City, and the Authority shall not be liable therefor.
The City shall place, keep, use, maintain, and operate the Property in such a manner and condition as will
provide for the safety of its agents, employees, invitees, subtenants, licensees, and the public.

Flood Plain. The City covenants that no Component of the Property is located in a 100-
year flood plain.

Application of Insurance Proceeds.

General. Proceeds of insurance received in respect of destruction of or damage to any portion of
the Property by fire or other casualty or event (excluding earthquake or flood) shall be paid to the Trustee
for application in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement. If there is an abatement of
rental payments pursuant to the Lease as a result of such casualty or event, and the City, with the consent
or at the direction of the Bond Insurer, elects pursuant to the Trust Agreement to apply such insurance to
the redemption of Bonds rather than to the replacement or repair of the destroyed or damaged portion of
the Property, then the Base Rental, with respect to the applicable Component or Components, shall be
adjusted in accordance with such redemption of Bonds. If the City, with the consent or at the direction of
the Bond Insurer, elects pursuant to the Trust Agreement to apply such proceeds to the repair or
replacement of the portion of the Property that has been damaged or destroyed (in the event there has
been an abatement of rental payments pursuant to the Lease), then rental payments shall again begin to
accrue with respect to the replacement portion of the Property upon restoration of the City to its right to
use and possess such replacement portion of the Property.

Title Insurance. Proceeds of title insurance received with respect to the Property shall be paid to
the Trustee for application in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement.

Eminent Domain. If the Property, or so much thereof as to render the remainder of the Property

unusable for the City’s purposes under the Lease, shall be taken under the power of eminent domain, then
the Lease shall terminate as of the day possession shall be so taken.
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If less than a substantial portion of the Property shall be taken under the power of eminent
domain, and the remainder is useable for the City’s purposes, then the Lease shall continue in full force
and effect as to the remaining portions of the Property, subject only to such rental abatement as is
required by the Lease. Pursuant to the Lease, the City and the Authority waive the benefit of any law to
the contrary. Any award made in eminent domain proceedings for the taking shall be paid to the Trustee
for application in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement. If the City, with the consent or
at the direction of the Bond Insurer, elects pursuant to the Trust Agreement, to apply such proceeds to the
replacement of the condemned portion of the Property, in the event there has been an abatement of rental
payments pursuant to the Lease, then rental payments shall again begin to accrue with respect thereto
upon restoration of the City to its right to use and possession of such replacement portion of the Property.

Assignment and Lease. The City shall not sell, mortgage, pledge, assign, or transfer any interest
of the City in the Lease by voluntary act or by operation of law, or otherwise; provided, however, that the
City may, with the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default
in its payment obligation under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, sublease all or any portion of the
Property and may grant concessions to others involving the use of any portion of the Property, whether
such concessions purport to convey a subleasehold interest or a license to use a portion of the Property;
provided, however, that such sublease or grant shall be subject to the terms of the Lease. The City shall at
all times remain primarily liable for the performance of the covenants and conditions on its part to be
performed under the Lease, notwithstanding any subletting or granting of concessions which may be
made. Nothing contained in the Lease shall be construed to relieve the City of its obligation to pay Base
Rental and Additional Rental as provided in the Lease or to relieve the City from any other obligations
contained in the Lease. In no event shall the City sublease to or permit the use of all or any part of the
Property by any person so as to cause interest on the Bonds to be includable in gross income for federal
income tax purposes or to be subject to State personal income tax.

The Authority shall, concurrently with the execution of the Lease, assign all of its right, title, and
interest in and to the Lease (except for its right to payment of its expenses, its right to indemnification,
and its right to receive certain notices under the Lease), including without limitation its right to receive
Base Rental payable under the Lease, to the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Agreement, and pursuant to the
Lease, the City consents to and approves such assignment. The parties to the Lease further agree to
execute any and all documents necessary and proper in connection therewith.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if no default or event of default has occurred and is continuing
under the Lease, the City, upon the receipt of the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer, may acquire
from the Authority, free and clear of the Authority’s rights under the Lease, any Component upon
substituting therefor, and subjecting to the terms of the Lease, another Component which has an annual
fair rental value at least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the maximum amount of Base Rental
payments with respect to the Component being replaced becoming due in the then current Lease Year or
in any subsequent Lease Year. As soon as practicable after the Authority has received from the City
(1) the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer to such substitution, (ii) a written notice of the City’s
intention to substitute for any Component and subject to the terms of the Lease a new Component, (iii) a
certificate of a City Representative that the total annual fair rental value of the new Component is at least
equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the maximum amount of Base Rental payments with respect to
the Component being replaced becoming due in the then current Lease Year or in any subsequent Lease
Year, (iv) evidence that an amendment to the Lease reflecting a new Component description has been
recorded in the Office of the Recorder of the County of Ventura, (v) a CLTA policy or policies of title
insurance for the new Component in an amount not less than the aggregate principal amount of
Outstanding Bonds to be secured by Base Rental payments made with respect to the new Component
(such policy or policies of title insurance shall show fee simple title to the new Component in the name of
the City and a leasehold estate in the name of the Authority, subject to Permitted Encumbrances which

A-29



will not, in the opinion of the Authority and the Bond Insurer, materially adversely affect the use and
possession of the new Component and will not result in the abatement of Base Rental payable by the City
under the Lease), and (vi) an opinion of Independent Counsel that such substitution will not cause interest
on the Bonds to be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes or to be subject to State
personal income tax, the Authority shall execute and deliver to the City a quitclaim deed conveying to the
City or its nominee the Authority’s right, title, and interest in the Component for which substitution was
sought. In no event shall the Authority transfer title to the Component to the City if any amounts are then
due to the Authority, the Trustee, or the Bond Insurer pursuant to the terms of the Lease or the Trust
Agreement.

Additions and Improvements; Removal. The City shall have the right during the Lease Term
to make any additions or improvements to any Component, to attach fixtures, structures, or signs, and to
affix any personal property to any Component, so long as the fair rental value of the Component is not
thereby reduced. Title to all equipment or personal property placed by the City on any Component shall
remain in the City; provided, however title to additions, improvements, and fixtures shall be subject to the
provisions of the Lease and the Property Lease. Title to any personal property or equipment placed on
any Component by any sublessee or licensee of the City shall be controlled by the sublease or license
agreement between such sublessee or licensee and the City, which sublease or license agreement shall not
be inconsistent with the Lease. The City shall not remove or cause to be removed any equipment or
personal property which may cause damage to the applicable Component or Components.

Events of Default. If (i) the City shall fail to deposit with the Trustee any Base Rental payment
required to be so deposited pursuant to the Lease by the close of business on the day such deposit is due
and payable; (ii) the City shall fail to pay any item of Additional Rental as and when the same shall
become due and payable pursuant to the Lease; (iii) the City shall breach any other terms, covenants, or
conditions contained in the Lease or in the Trust Agreement, and shall fail to remedy any such breach
with all reasonable dispatch within a period of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof shall have been
given to the City from the Authority, the Trustee, or the Bond Insurer, or, if such breach cannot be
remedied within such 30-day period, the City shall fail to institute corrective action within such 30-day
period and diligently pursue the same to completion (provided that in the event such breach as provided in
clause (iii) above is not cured within sixty (60) days, the City shall obtain the prior written consent of the
Bond Insurer to pursue the same to completion beyond the grace period provided in the Lease); or (iv) the
City shall file a case in bankruptcy, or any right or interest of the City under the Lease shall be subjected
to any execution, garnishment, or attachment, or the City shall be adjudicated as a bankrupt, or any
assignment shall be made by the City for the benefit of creditors, or the City shall enter into an agreement
of composition with creditors, or a court of competent jurisdiction shall approve of a petition applicable to
the City in any proceedings instituted under the provisions of the federal bankruptcy code, as amended, or
under any similar act which may hereafter be enacted, then and in any such event the City shall be
deemed to be in default under the Lease.

Remedies on Default. Upon any such default, the Authority, and the Trustee, as its assignee, in
addition to all other rights and remedies either may have at law, may, with the prior written consent of the
Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligation under the Financial
Guaranty Insurance Policy, and shall, at the direction of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is
not in default in its payment obligation under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy:

(a) terminate the Lease in the manner hereinafter provided on account of default by
the City, notwithstanding any re-entry or re-letting of the Property as provided for in subparagraph (b)
below, and to re-enter the Property and remove all persons in possession thereof and all personal property
whatsoever situated upon the Property and place such personal property in storage in any warehouse or
other suitable place located within the geographical boundaries of the City, for the account of and at the
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expense of the City. In the event of such termination, the City shall surrender immediately possession of
the Property, without let or hindrance, and shall pay the Authority all damages recoverable at law that the
Authority may incur by reason of default by the City, including, without limitation, any costs, loss, or
damage whatsoever arising out of, in connection with, or incident to any such re-entry upon the Property
and removal and storage of such property by the Authority or its duly authorized agents in accordance
with the provisions of the Lease. Neither notice to pay rent or to deliver up possession of the Property
given pursuant to law nor any entry or re-entry by the Authority nor any proceeding in unlawful detainer,
or otherwise, brought by the Authority for the purpose of effecting such re-entry or obtaining possession
of the Property nor the appointment of a receiver upon initiative of the Authority to protect the
Authority’s interest under the Lease shall of itself operate to terminate the Lease, and no termination of
the Lease on account of default by the City shall be or become effective by operation of law or acts of the
parties to the Lease, or otherwise, unless and until the Authority shall have given written notice to the
City of the election on the part of the Authority to terminate the Lease. The City covenants and agrees
that no surrender of the Property or of the remainder of the Lease Term or any termination of the Lease
shall be valid in any manner or for any purpose whatsoever unless stated or accepted by the Authority by
such written notice.

(b) Without terminating the Lease, (i) collect each installment of Base Rental and
Additional Rental as it becomes due and enforce any other terms or provisions of the Lease to be kept or
performed by the City, regardless of whether or not the City has abandoned the Property or (ii) exercise
any and all rights of entry and re-entry upon the Property. In the event the Authority does not elect to
terminate the Lease in the manner provided for in subparagraph (a) above, the City shall remain liable and
shall keep or perform all covenants and conditions contained in the Lease to be kept or performed by the
City and, if the Property is not re-let, to pay the full amount of the rent to the end of the Lease Term or, in
the event that the Property is re-let, to pay any deficiency in rent that results therefrom; and the City shall
pay said rent and/or rent deficiency punctually at the same time and in the same manner as provided for in
the Lease the payment of rent thereunder, notwithstanding that the Authority may have received in
previous years or may receive thereafter in subsequent years rental in excess of the rental specified in the
Lease, and notwithstanding any entry or re-entry by the Authority or suit in unlawful detainer, or
otherwise, brought by the Authority for the purpose of effecting such re-entry or obtaining possession of
the Property. Pursuant to the Lease, should the Authority elect to re-enter as provided in the Lease, the
City irrevocably appoints the Authority as the agent and attorney-in-fact of the City to re-let the Property,
or any part thereof, from time to time, either in the Authority’s name or otherwise, upon such terms and
conditions and for such use and period as the Authority may deem advisable and to remove all persons in
possession thereof and all personal property whatsoever situated upon the Property and to place such
personal property in storage in any warehouse or other suitable place located within the geographical
boundaries of the City, for the account of and at the expense of the City, and the City indemnifies and
agrees to save harmless the Authority from any costs, loss, or damage whatsoever arising out of, in
connection with, or incident to any such re-entry upon and re-letting of the Property and removal and
storage of such property by the Authority or its duly authorized agents in accordance with the provisions
of the Lease. The City agrees that the terms of the Lease constitute full and sufficient notice of the right
of the Authority to re-let the Property in the event of such re-entry without effecting a surrender of the
Lease, and further agrees that no acts of the Authority in effecting such re-letting shall constitute a
surrender or termination of the Lease, irrespective of the use or the term for which such re-letting is made
or the terms and conditions of such re-letting, or otherwise, but that, on the contrary, in the event of such
default by the City, the right to terminate the Lease shall vest in the Authority, to be effected in the sole
and exclusive manner provided for in subparagraph (a) above. The City further waives the right to any
rental obtained by the Authority in excess of the rental specified in the Lease and conveys and releases
such excess to the Authority as compensation to the Authority for its services in re-letting the Property.
The City further agrees to pay the Authority the cost of any alterations or additions to the Property

A-31



necessary to place the Property in condition for re-letting immediately upon notice to the City of the
completion and installation of such additions or alterations.

The City waives any and all claims for damages caused or which may be caused by the Authority
in reentering and taking possession of the Property as provided in the Lease and all claims for damages
that may result from the destruction of or injury to the Property and all claims for damages to or loss of
any property belonging to the City, or any other person, that may be in or upon the Property.

In addition to the other remedies set forth in the Lease, upon the occurrence of an event of default
as described in the Lease, the Authority and the Trustee, as its assignee, shall be entitled, with the prior
written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment
obligations under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, to proceed to protect and enforce the rights
vested in the Authority and its assignee by the Lease or by law. The provisions of the Lease and the
duties of the City and of its councilmembers, officers, or employees shall be enforceable by the Authority
or its assignee by mandamus or other appropriate suit, action, or proceeding in any court of competent
jurisdiction. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Authority and its assignee may, with the
prior written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment
obligation under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, and shall, at the direction of the Bond Insurer,
so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligation under the Financial Guaranty
Insurance Policy, bring the following actions:

Accounting. By action or suit in equity to require the City and its councilmembers,
officers, and employees and its assigns to account as the trustee of an express trust.

Injunction. By action or suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which may be unlawful
or in violation of the rights of the Authority or its assignee.

Mandamus. By mandamus or other suit, action, or proceeding at law or in equity to
enforce the Authority’s or its assignee’s rights against the City (and its councilmembers, officers,
and employees) and to compel the City to perform and carry out its duties and obligations under
the law and its covenants and agreements with the Authority as provided in the Lease.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Lease, so long as the Bond Insurer is
not in default in its payment obligations under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, no remedy shall
be exercised under the Lease without the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer and the Bond Insurer
shall have the right to direct the exercise of any remedy under the Lease.

The termination of the Lease by the Authority and its assignees on account of a default by the
City thereunder shall not affect or result in a termination of the lease of the Property by the City to the
Authority pursuant to the Property Lease.

Each and every remedy of the Authority or any assignee of the rights of the Authority under the
Lease is cumulative and the exercise of one remedy shall not impair the right of the Authority or its
assignee to any or all other remedies. If any statute or rule validly shall limit the remedies given to the
Authority or any assignee of the rights of the Authority under the Lease, the Authority or its assignee
nevertheless shall be entitled to whatever remedies are allowable under any statute or rule of law.

All damages and other payments received by the Authority pursuant to the Lease shall be applied
in the manner set forth in the Trust Agreement.
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Option to Purchase. The City shall have the exclusive right and option, which shall be
irrevocable during the Lease Term, to purchase all of the Authority’s right, title and interest in the
Property or any Component thereof on any Business Day, upon payment of the respective option price for
the Property or such Component thereof, as further described below, but only if the City is not in default
under the Lease or the Trust Agreement and only in the manner provided therein.

The option price for each Component in any Lease Year shall be an amount equal to the
redemption price of Outstanding Bonds, including redemption premium, if any, and interest, as set forth
in the Trust Agreement. Such option price is intended to represent the then fair value of such Component.

If the Business Day on which the City intends to exercise its option under the Lease is, in
accordance with the terms of the Trust Agreement, a date on which the Bonds are subject to optional
redemption, then the City shall exercise its option to purchase by giving notice to the Trustee of its
intention to exercise its option under the Lease not less than forty-five (45) days prior to the Business Day
on which it intends to exercise its option under the Lease Agreement and shall arrange for the deposit
with the Trustee by the date on which it intends to exercise its option to purchase under the Lease an
amount equal to the option price.

If the Business Day on which the City intends to exercise its option under the Lease is not a date
on which the Bonds are subject to optional redemption pursuant to the terms of the Trust Agreement, the
City shall exercise its option to purchase by giving notice thereof to the Trustee not later than ten (10)
days prior to the Business Day on which it desires to purchase the Authority’s right, title, and interest in a
Component and the option price shall be payable in installments. Each such installment (a) shall be
payable at each time at which a payment of Base Rental would have been payable had such option not
been exercised until the due date of the final installment referred to in the proviso set forth below in this
paragraph, and (b) shall equal the principal component and the interest component of each Base Rental
payment referred to in clause (a) above; provided, however, that the final installment shall be payable on
the first date on which Bonds are subject to optional redemption pursuant to the terms of the Trust
Agreement and shall be in an amount equal to the option price on such date for that Component. Each
such installment shall bear interest until paid at a rate equal to the rate which would have been payable
with respect to the payments of Base Rental referred to in clause (a) above. In order to secure its
obligations to pay the installments referred to above, and to cause the defeasance of the allocable portion
of the Bonds relating to such Component, the City, concurrently with the exercise of its option under the
Lease, shall satisfy the provisions in the Trust Agreement, including the deposit of amounts which will,
together with the interest to accrue thereon without the need for further investment, be fully sufficient to
pay the installments (including all principal and interest) and the option price referred to above at the
times at which such installments and the option price are required to be paid. Such deposit shall be in
addition to the Base Rental due on such date.

On any Business Day as to which the City shall properly have exercised the option granted it
pursuant to the Lease with respect to a Component and shall have paid or made provision (as set forth in
the preceding paragraphs) for the payment of the required option price and provided for the defeasance of
the allocable portion of the Bonds relating to such Component or Components in accordance with the
terms and provisions of the Trust Agreement or shall have caused the redemption of the allocable portion
of the Bonds relating to such Component or Components in accordance with the terms and provisions of
the Trust Agreement, as applicable, the Authority shall execute and deliver to the City a quitclaim deed
conveying to the City or its nominee the Authority’s right, title, and interest in that Component. If (A) the
City shall (i) properly exercise the option provided in the Lease prior to the expiration of the Lease Term
and (ii) provide for the defeasance of the allocable portion of the Bonds relating to such Component or
Components in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Trust Agreement or shall have caused the
redemption of the allocable portion of the Bonds relating to such Component or Components in
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accordance with the terms and provisions of the Trust Agreement, as applicable, and (B) the Authority
shall execute and deliver the quitclaim decd to the Component as aforesaid, then the Lease shall terminate
with respect to that Component, but such termination shall not affect the City’s obligation to pay the
option price on the terms set forth in the Lease and shall not affect the City’s obligation to pay Base
Rental and Additional Rental with respect to any other Component.

PROPERTY LEASE

The Property Lease is entered into between the Authority and the City and, pursuant to its terms,
the Authority agrees to lease the Site with respect to each Component of the Property from the City.

The Property Lease shall commence on the Closing Date and end on the earlier to occur of one
week after (i) June 1, 2016; provided that in the event the principal of and interest on the Bonds and all
other amounts payable under the Lease and the Trust Agreement shall not be fully paid, or if the Base
Rental or Additional Rental due under the Lease shall have been abated at any time as permitted by the
terms of the Lease, then the term of the Property Lease shall be extended, except that the term shall in no
event be extended beyond June 1, 2021, or (ii) the first date upon which the Bonds are no longer
outstanding under the Trust Agreement.

The City reserves the right at any time to substitute real property and/or improvements thereon
owned by the City for all or any Component of the Property described in the Property Lease, provided
that:

(a) the City obtains the prior written consent of the Authority, the Bond Insurer, and
any municipal bond rating agency that has, at the request of the City, rated the Bonds issued pursuant to
the Trust Agreement; and

(b) the City finds (and delivers a certificate to the Authority and Trustee setting forth
its findings) that the substituted Component or Components of the Property and/or improvements thereon
has the same or greater fair rental value than that Component or Components of the Property for which it
is being substituted and that the Base Rental payments being made by the City for the then current Lease
Year and subsequent Lease Year thereafter pursuant to the Lease will not be reduced.

Upon the substitution of any Component or Components of the Property for the Component or
Components constituting the Property described in the Property Lease, the City, the Authority, and the
Trustee shall execute and record with the Office of the County Recorder, County of Ventura, California,
any document necessary to release any Component or Components of the Property substituted pursuant to
the provisions of the Property Lease and the Lease and to include the substituted Component or
Components to constitute the released Component or Components of the Property under the Property
Lease and the Lease.
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APPENDIX B

GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING
THE CITY OF OXNARD

The Bonds do not constitute a general obligation debt of the City of Oxnard and the City has
not pledged its full faith and credit to the repayment of the Bonds. The following information is
presented for informational purposes only.

General

The City of Oxnard (the “City”) is located in western Ventura County (the “County”) on the
shore of the Pacific Ocean. The City is approximately 65 miles northwest of the City of Los Angeles, 35
miles south of the City of Santa Barbara, and 6 miles south of the county seat of the County. The City is
the financial hub of the County and the largest city in the County, with a population estimated of 182,000
in 2002, accounting for over 23% of the County’s population. The City has become a premier center of
County industrial activity since 1996 with the start of nine new industrial buildings representing a total of
approximately 750,000 square feet of industrial and commercial space, with significant growth and
building in the northeast area of the City.

The City was incorporated as a general law city on June 30, 1903, and operates under a council-
manager form of government. The City is governed by a five-member City Council elected at large for
four-year alternating terms, with the exception of the Mayor, who is directly elected for a two-year term.

The City has a diversified and expanding economic base composed of light and heavy
manufacturing, retail, service and government sectors. The City has maintained a steady population
growth rate of approximately 2.2% for the past decade and the City’s adopted General Plan anticipates
continued steady growth for the next ten years.

Population

The City’s population has grown from approximately 150,300 people in 1993 to approximately
182,000 in 2002. The following table shows the approximate changes in population in the City, the
County, the State, and the United States for the years 1993 through 2002 as of January 1 in each year.

Population of
City, County, State and U.S.

1993 through 2002
Population United
Percent Percent State Percent States Percent

Year City Change County Change (000) Change (000) Change
1993 150,300 -- 690,000 -- 31,150 -- 260,255 -
1994 153,400 2.06% 697,200 1.85% 31,418 0.86% 263,436 1.22%
1995 155,700 1.50 702,800 0.80 31,617 0.63 266,557 1.18
1996 157,500 1.16 707,800 0.71 31,837 0.70 269,667 1.17
1997 159,800 1.46 716,100 1.17 32,207 1.16 272,912 1.20
1998 163,000 2.00 725,400 1.30 32,657 1.40 276,115 1.17
1999 166,100 1.90 736,000 1.46 33,140 1.48 279,295 1.15
2000 170,358 2.56 753,197® 2.34 33,872 221 281,674? 0.85
2001 177,600 425 765,200 1.59 34,385 1.51 284,797 1.11
2002 182,000 2.48 780,100 1.95 35,037 1.90 N/A N/A

Sources: State of California Department of Finance; U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census (U.S. figures only).
(1) Unless otherwise noted, estimates for City, County and State as of January 1, and for U.S. as of July 1.
(2) Actual census figures.
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Property Tax Rates

In June of 1978, California voters approved Proposition 13 (the Jarvis-Gann Initiative), which
added Article XIITA to the California Constitution. Article XIIIA limits ad valorem taxes on real
property to 1% of the full cash value, plus taxes necessary to repay indebtedness approved by the voters
prior to July 1, 1978. The only voter-approved obligation of the City currently outstanding is the Oxnard
District No. 1-Public Safety Retirement Tax, a tax levied on all properties within the City to pay public
safety retirement expenses. The following table details the City’s property tax rates for the last 10 fiscal
years.

City of Oxnard
Property Tax Rates
1993 through 2002
Oxnard District No. 1
Year Ended (Public Safety
June 30 County Tax Retirement Tax) School Districts Water Districts Total Tax Rates

1993 1.00% 0.0490% 0.0736% 0.2555% 1.7810%
1994 1.00 0.0495 0.0685 0.2693 1.3873
1995 1.00 0.0380 0.0805 0.2913 1.4098
1996 1.00 0.0362 0.0773 0.3105 1.4240
1997 1.00 0.0367 0.0807 0.3328 1.4502
1998 1.00 0.0367 0.1360 0.3449 1.5176
1999 1.00 0.0367 0.1491 0.1212 1.3070
2000 1.00 0.0475 0.1740 0.0979 1.3194
2001 1.00 0.0475 0.1714 0.0977 1.3166
2002 1.00 0.0575 0.1867 0.0723 1.3165

Source: City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002.

Property Tax Levies, Collections and Delinquencies

The Ventura County Tax Collector collects ad valorem property tax levies representing taxes
levied for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal property which is situated in the County as of the
preceding March 1. Unsecured taxes are assessed and payable on March 1 and become delinquent
August 31 in the next fiscal year. Accordingly, unsecured taxes are levied at the rate applicable to the
fiscal year preceding the one in which they are paid.

One half of the secured tax levy is due November 1 and becomes delinquent December 10; the
second installment is due February 1 and becomes delinquent April 10. A ten percent (10%) penalty is
added to any late installment.

Property owners may redeem property upon payment of delinquent taxes and penalties. Tax-
delinquent properties are subject to a redemption penalty of one and one-half percent (1-1/2%) of the
delinquent amount every month commencing on July 1 following the date on which the property became
tax-delinquent. Properties may be redeemed under an installment plan by paying current taxes, plus 20%
of delinquent taxes each year for five years, with interest accruing at one and one-half percent (1-1/2%)
per month on the unpaid balance.

The following table details the City’s property tax levies, collections and delinquencies for the
last 10 fiscal years.
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Year Ended
June 30

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

City of Oxnard

Property Tax Levies, Collections and Delinquencies

1993 through 2002
Total
Collections as a
Current Tax Percent of Levy  Delinquent Tax Total Tax Percentage of

Total Tax Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections Tax Levy

$18,331,754 $16,929.,453 92.35% $687,047 $17,616,500 96.10%
17,571,000 17,467,060 99.40 621,750 18,088,810 102.95
17,318,091 17,000,969 98.17 567,432 17,568,401 101.45
18,296,398 16,831,456 91.99 569,431 17,400,887 95.11
18,233,366 17,033,821 93.42 487,301 17,521,122 96.09
18,113,687 17,712,334 97.78 250,440 17,962,774 99.17
15,014,300 14,868,769 99.03 189,551 15,058,320 100.29
17,038,470 17,317,763 101.64 99,032 17,416,795 102.22
23,380,000 23,484,567 100.45 90,164 23,574,731 100.83
25,900,000 25,718,029 99.30 284,711 26,002,740 100.40

(1) Voter-approved tax for $3,977,315 was transferred from trust and agency to the special revenue fund in fiscal year 2001.
Source: City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002.

Assessed Property Values

The following table details the assessed value of the real and personal property within the City for

the last 10 fiscal years.

Year Ended
June 30

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

Real Property
Assessed Value

City of Oxnard
Assessed Property Values
1993 through 2002

Personal Property

Assessed Value

$5,989,433,136
6,082,455,163
6,215,308,381
6,312,352,104
6,307,831,466
6,473,207,602
6,605,309,284
6,844,276,538
7,645,814,717
8,351,831,139

Source: City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002.

$81,514,123
108,703,880
117,493,334
119,814,735
101,123,835
94,844,935
95,463,165
91,597,348
97,930,553
111,351,225

Exemptions

$749,713,311
692,726,941
697,128,516
667,234,581
720,506,163
722,494,121
737,477,086
874,969,634
846,810,724
905,863,935

Total Assessed Value

$5,321,233,948
5,498,432,102
5,635,673,199
5,764,932,258
5,688,449,138
5,845,558,416
5,963,295,363
6,060,904,252
6,896,934,546
7,557,318,429



Principal Taxpayers

The following table lists the principal taxpayers in the City as of June 30, 2002.

Taxpayer

The Procter & Gamble Paper Products Company
St. John’s Regional Medical Center
Willamette Industries Inc.

CHW Central Coast

Tiger Ventura County

Seminis Inc.

Ormond Beach Power, Gen. LLC
BMW of North America Inc.
Ocean Vista Power Generation
Donwen Corporation

Fred Kavli

Verizon Media Ventures Inc.
Terminal Freezers Inc.

Arden Realty Ltd Partnership
Other Taxpayers

Totals

City of Oxnard
Principal Taxpayers

Type of Business

Manufacturing-Paper Products
Hospital

Processed Paper Manufacturer
Real Estate Development
Real Estate Development
Seeds

Power Plant

Auto Manufacturer

Power Plant

Commercial Development
Real Estate Development
Telecommunication

Food Processing

Real Estate Development
Various

Source: City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002.

Outstanding Debt

Percentage of

Total Assessed

Assessed Valuation Valuation

$ 269,163,758 3.562%
149,730,718 1.981
67,773,739 0.897
51,491,600 0.681
47,681,230 0.631
45,118,255 0.597
42,767,608 0.566
39,336,819 0.521
37,205,756 0.492
36,509,318 0.483
34,162,579 0.452
31,386,300 0.415
30,197,990 0.400
28,611,701 0.379
6.646.181.,058 87.943

$7,557,318,429 100.000%

The City uses a variety of tax increment, revenue and lease indebtedness to finance various
capital acquisitions. The outstanding balances for this indebtedness as of June 30, 2002, are set forth in

the following table:

Type of Debt

Tax Allocation Bonds "

Revenue Bonds

Capital Leases

Notes and Loans Payable

Certificates of Participation
Total

City of Oxnard
Outstanding Debt
(As of June 30, 2002)

Outstanding Balance
(as of June 30, 2002)

$ 14,475,000.00
89,043,438.00
1,819,953.00
8,539,733.00
8.440,000.00
$122,318,124.00

(1) The tax allocation bonds are paid from the increment revenue of property taxes levied within the City’s redevelopment and
renewal areas. The Central Revitalization Project and other redevelopment areas currently are administered by the Oxnard

Community Development Commission.

(2) Revenue bonds include issues used to finance projects for public parking, civic auditorium, sewer and treatment expansion and
public housing. Debt service on these issues is paid from the revenues of the appropriate enterprise funds and the City’s General

Fund.

Source: City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002.



Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

The following table details the City’s direct and overlapping bonded debt as of June 30, 2002.

City of Oxnard
Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt
(As of June 30, 2002)
Percentage of
Debt Applicable
Net Debt to the City of
Outstanding Oxnard (Before Less:

Jurisdiction (June 30, 2002) Exclusions) Exclusions
Direct Bonded Debit:
City of Oxnard $29,390,000 100.000% $29,390,000
City of Oxnard — Pooled Insurance Obligation 1,227,732 100.000 1,227,732
City of Oxnard — 1915 Act Bonds 32,020,000 100.000 32,020,000
City of Oxnard Community Facilities District No. 88-1 2.015.000 100.000 2.015.000

Total Direct Bonded Debt $ 64,652,732 $64,652,732
Overlapping Bonded Debt:
Ventura County Superintendent of Schools — COP $ 294,795 13.585% --
Ventura County Community College District — COP 1,502,264 13.589 -
Ventura County General Fund Obligations 11,859,026 13.585 -
Ventura County Pension Obligation 14,017,003 13.585 -
Metropolitan Water District 3,632,202 0.722 --
Oxnard Union High School District 23,003,820 43.502 -
Oxnard Union High School District — COP 8,130,524 43.502 -
Oxnard School District 66,248,007 90.108 -
Oxnard School District — COP 6,185,914 90.108 -
Rio School District 16,245,513 84.568 -
Rio School District — COP 4,710,438 84.568 -
Hueneme School District 5,784,344 50.808 -
Ocean View School District 1,473,940 38.839 --
Ocean View School District — COP 904.949 38.839 --

Total Overlapping Bonded Debt $163,992,739 -

Total Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt $228,645,471 $64,652,732

(1) Exclusions represent all bonds that are not tax supported obligations of the City.
Source: City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002.

Employment

Amount of
Debt
Applicable to
the City of
Oxnard

$ 40,048
204,143
1,611,049
1,904,210
26,224
10,007,122
3,536,941
59,694,754
5,574,003
13,738,505
3,983,523
2,938,909
572,464
351.473
$104,183,368

$104,183,368

The following tables present the available labor force data and unemployment rates for five years

for the City and the County.

Unemployment Rate

City and County
Labor Force and Unemployment Figures
(1997 through 2001)
City County
Year Labor Force Unemployment Rate Labor Force
2001 85,200 6.5% 419,800
2000 83,850 6.5 413,300
1999 80,740 6.9 397,400
1998 79,170 8.0 388,200
1997 78,140 9.3 381,500

Source: State of California, Employment Development Department.

4.5%
4.5
4.8
5.5
6.5



Taxable Retail Sales

Consumer spending in calendar year 2001 resulted in $1,775,146 in taxable sales in the City,
which is approximately 9.52% above calendar year 2000. Although the taxable sales figures for each type
of business are not yet available from the California Board of Equalization, the following table sets forth
information regarding taxable sales in the City for each type of business for calendar years 1997 through
2000.

City of Oxnard
Taxable Retail Sales by Type of Business
1997 - 2000
(000s)
1997 1998 1999 2000
Apparel stores $ 43,816 $ 48,198 $ 50,341 $ 43,441
General merchandise stores 256,788 265,886 262,491 241,410
Food stores 62,158 64,708 66,763 66,134
Eating and drinking places 102,099 113,096 121,892 128,529
Home furnishings and appliances 36,777 40,436 45,114 44,273
Building mat. and farm implmts. 154,135 174,486 183,951 187,530
Auto dealers and auto supplies 219,860 226,386 321,044 345,079
Service stations 59,191 55,600 69,170 87,773
Other retail stores 164,866 172,786 188,381 200,655
Total Retail Outlets 1,099,600 1,161,582 1,309,147 1,344,824
All Other Outlets 220,188 223,242 256,213 275.985
Total All Outlets $1,319,788 $1,384,824 $1,565,360 $1,620,809

Source: California State Board of Equalization.
Transportation

Oxnard is served by all major modes of transportation. Both U.S. Highway 101 and State
Highway 1 pass through the City, linking it with the Los Angeles metropolitan area and Santa Barbara
County. Rail passenger service is provided by AMTRAK, which has a station in the City. Two trains
daily pass through each direction and stop at the Oxnard station. Metrolink provides commuters from the
Oxnard Transportation Center with several daily routes to the Los Angeles basin, including downtown
Los Angeles. Union Pacific Railroad provides freight rail service to the City. The Ventura County
Railroad Company connects Port Hueneme, the Ormond Beach Industrial Area, the CB Base and
surrounding industrial areas to the Union Pacific line. The Port of Hueneme, owned and operated by the
Oxnard Harbor District, is the only commercial deep-draft harbor between Los Angles and San Francisco.
The port has five 600 to 700 foot berths and a 35-foot entrance channel depth. Completed in 1989 was an
$18 million expansion of the harbor that included the addition of an automobile terminal and the
construction of a new wharf. The Port’s acquisition of 33 acres from the Navy in 1997 has enabled it to
increase facilities for importing foreign automobiles. Automobile imports increased by 12.7% in 1997,
making the Port one of the top 10 entry points in the U.S. for foreign automobiles. The Channel Islands
Harbor is a modern 3,000 slip boat marina which also serves the Oxnard area in the capacity of a
recreational marina. The Oxnard Airport is operated by Ventura County as a general and commercial
aviation air field. The Oxnard Airport handles passenger as well as cargo services. Feeder service to Los
Ageless International Airport is provided by United Express and American Eagle. Local bus service is
provided by South Coast Area Transit System (SCAT), a regional public transit agency funded by the
County and member cities. Service is available in Ojai, Ventura, Oxnard and Port Hueneme. The
Greyhound bus line provides passenger and parcel service from its Oxnard station. Great American
Stagelines provides passenger services between Oxnard and Los Angeles every hour. A multi-modal
transportation center located in downtown Oxnard brings together all these forms of transportation.
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Education

There are twenty-nine elementary, three junior high and five senior high schools located in and
around the City, plus eight parochial and private schools. The City is served by Oxnard College, which
has an enrollment of over 5,700 students. The 119-acre campus is located on Rose Avenue between
Channel Island Boulevard and Pleasant Valley Road. Oxnard College currently offers degree and
certificate programs. The newly-completed California State University campus at Channel Islands
(CSUCI) opened in fall 2002 with approximately 1,320 full time transfer students and will welcome
freshmen in fall 2003. In addition, two campuses of the University of California, Santa Barbara (UCSB)
and Los Angeles (UCLA), one campus of the California State University, Northridge (CSUN), and two
private universities, Pepperdine and California Lutheran University, are within a fifty minute drive.

Recreation

The City offers its residents a wide range of recreational facilities. The beach parks, marina and
neighborhood and regional parks add up to nearly 1,500 acres of park land. McGrath State Beach Park,
located south of the Santa Clara River mouth, covers 295 acres and includes over a mile of ocean
frontage. Overnight camping and day picnics are the main use of that park. Oxnard Beach Park includes
62 acres with concession stands and facilities for day picnics and sports. Silver Strand Beach, south of the
Harbor entrance, and Hollywood Beach, north of the entrance, are day beach facilities. Channel Islands
Marina is a recreational boating marina administered by Ventura County. The City has over thirty
neighborhood parks located throughout the City. A tennis and softball center is located at Community
Center Park. Additionally, Wilson Park contains the largest senior citizen center in the Tri-County area.

The City owns the River Ridge Golf Course, an 18-hole, 7,010-yard championship golf course

located on the south side of the Santa Clara River. The City also owns a 1,600-seat Performing Arts
Center located on Hobson Way in the heart of the City.

B-7



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)



APPENDIX C

CITY OF OXNARD
COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

C-1



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)



10)2311(] ddueUL
UeWUIa[y uejg
juawreda] adueury
Aq paredar

200T ‘0€ dun{ papuy Ieax [edsi]
LDMOJdTA TVIDNVNIA TVANNY FAISNTHIAINOD




City of Oxnard, California

Table of Contents
June 30, 2002

PAGE
INTRODUCTION:
Letter Of Transmitlal .. ..o ottt et e e e e e i
GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Exccllence in Financial Reporting .. ... oo xxi
Certificate of Recognition for Early Implementation of GASB Statement 34 .. ... ... xxii
List of Principal Officials . .. ... ..o e xxiit
Organizational Charls ... ... ... i e e e e XXiv
VICINIY M o e XXVvi
FINANCIAL SECTION:
Independent Auditors’ REPOI . .. ... i i 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) ... ... . s 3
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
SLAteMENt OF INCU ASSCLS . . o o ottt ittt et e e ettt e e et e e e 18
SHalemMENt Of ACH VLIS . . . ittt et e e e e e ety 19
Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental Funds:
Balance Sheet . . ... e e 20
Reconciliation of Fund Balance for the Governmental Funds to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets for
Governmental AClIVIHIES . ... .. e i i e 21
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes inFund Balance . ................... oo oo 22
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance to the Governmental-Wide Statement of Activities . ........ ... . . it 23
City of Oxnard, California
Table of Contents (Continued)
June 30, 2002
Proprictary Funds:
SEAleMEnt OFNEL ASSCIS . .. oottt it e e e e e e e 24
Statement of Revenues, Expensecs and Changes in Fund NeLASSCLS . . . ..ottt caiieennees 25
Statement of Cash Flows .. ... . e 26
Fiduciary Funds:
StatemEnt Of NEt ASSEIS . . ..ottt e e e 28
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements:
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies .. .......... o it e 29
2. Cashand INVESIMENIS . . . . ...ttt e e e 41
3. Interfund Receivables and Payables ... ... ... . e e 44
4. Receivables and Payables ... ... ... e 45
S, dnterfund Transfers . .. ... o e 46
6. Capital ASSELS . . . ...ttt e e e e 47
7. Long-Term Obligations . ... ... ... e e e e 50
8. Defined Benefit Pension Plan . ... .. .. ... . e 00
9. Post Employment Health Care Benefils . . .. .. ... it e et et et 61
10. Commitment and COntINGENCIES . ... .. ...ttt ittt it e ettt et ees 62
11. Fund Balance - Governmental Funds .. ... ... .. i i e s 62
12, Net Assets - Proprietary FUnAs ... ... .. s 63
13 Risk Management ... ... e 64

CAccumulated Fund Deficils . ... o e 65



City of Oxnard, California

Table of Contents (Continued)
June 30, 2002

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED):

Schedules of Revenues and Expenditures, Budget and Actual on a Budgctary Basis:
General Fund:
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance ... ... o oot 66

Special Revenue Funds:
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance:

Devclopment Fees Fund ..o i e U
HUDand CDBG Grants Funds . . ... ... . e 72
State and Federal Grants Fund . .. ... ... 73
Trend Information-Pension Plan (PERS) . ... ... o 74

SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (COMBINING FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES):

Internal Service Funds:

Combining Statement of NCUASSEIS . ... ...ttt it e e e 75
Combining Statement of Activitics and Changes in Fund Net ASsCIs . . ... ..ot i e 76
Statement of Cash Flows ... ... 77

Fiduciary Funds:

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net ASsels . ... ... ..t e e 78
Governmental Non-Major Funds:

Combining Balance Sheetl ... ... ... 80

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance . ............................... 81

Schedules of Revenue, Expenditures, Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis
Non-Major Funds . ... 82
Debt Service FUnd . ... . 83

City of Oxnard, California

Table of Contents (Continued)
June 30, 2002

STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited):

TABLE | - General Govemmental Expenditures by Function ............... .. ... .. ... ... ... .......... 84
TABLE Nl - General Governmental Revenues by Source .. ... .o 85
TABLE Il - General Governmental Tax Revenues by SOUrCC ... .......ooooooii 86
TABLE IV = Property Tax Levies and Collections . ............ ... ... . 0o uuir i 87
TABLE v - Property Tax Rates .. ... o 88
TABLE VI - Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Properly . .........o. oo oo 89
TABLE VII = Prineipal Taxpayers . ... ... 90
TABLE VIl - Computation of Legal Debt Margin . ..............o 91
TABLE IX - Computation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debl .. ... oo ouu s 92
TABLE X - Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita ............. 93
TABLE X1 - Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Bonded Debt To General Governmental
Expenditures ... ... 94
TABLE X1t - Special Assessment ColECtioNs . ........ ... ... i 95
TABLEXNI - Water Revenue Bond COVErage ... ............ouoo i 96
TABLEXIV - Sewer Revenue Bond COVErage ....................ouumemine e, 97
TABLE XV - Demographic Statistics ... ... .. 98
TABLE XVI - Property Value, Construction and Bank Deposils . ... ..........ouuur o 99
TABLEXVIl - Schedule of Insurance in FOrce .. ............ oo oo 100
TABLE XVIHI - State of California Miscellaneous SIatistics ... ..........o..ournnerne i, 101



City of Oxnard, California

Table of Contents (Continued)
June 30, 2002

SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (OTHER NON-GAAP STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES FOR CITY MANAGEMENT USE):

CAPITAL ASSETS:

Comparative Schedule by SOUTCES . . . ...t 107
Schedule by Function and ACHVILY .. ..o ..t e 108
Schedule by Changes by Function and Activity . ........ ... .. it 109
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES STATEMENTS:
Combining Statements:
Balance SHCel . ... e e e i10
Statement of Revenucs, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ..., 111
FUND TYPES:
General Fund:
Balance ShCCl . . .ot e 112
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances . ....... ... ... oo 113
Special Revenue Funds:
Combining Balance ShCet . .. ... ... s 114
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ............... ... ... 16
Debt Service Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet . ... ... ... e 18
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances .................o.oooine 119
Capital Project Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet . ... ... ... e 120
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ....................... ... 121
City of Oxnard, California
Table of Contents (Continued)
June 30, 2002
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual on Budgetary Basis
General Fund Schedulc of Resources ...............oo o o 122
GcncralFundSchedulcofRequiremenls............‘................4..,.............H.........::.|24

Special Revenue Funds Combined Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances



December 4, 2002

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Oxnard, California

| INTRODUCTION I

It is our great plcasurc to submit the Comprchensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Oxnard, California (City) for the fiscal ycar ended
June 30, 2002. This year’s report has been prepared using the new reporting model as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analvsis - for State and Local Governments. This new reporting model
completely changes the format of the City’s financial statements. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and
faimess of presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the data as presented is accurate in all material respects; that it is
presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of its
various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the City’s financial afTairs have been included.

CAFR Explanation
The CAFR was prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as set forth in

pronouncements of the GASB and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). The CAFR is presented in three sections and includes the following
information:

1. Introductory Section:
This scction includes the letter of transmittal with comments on the operations of the City for the year ended June 30, 2002; the City’s organizational
chart; a list of principal officials; thc Government Finance Officers Association of the United States (GFOA) Certificate of Achievement for
Exccllence in Financial Reporting; and Certificate of Recognition for Early Implementation of GASB 34 to the City for